
 

OfllttAt 
11(~ COPy 

~Ol,ies fr(l,r, t!rh~ 
I:~PY .nd F'I ~(:L 

S T . M  A R Y P A R I S 
H  C 0 U N  C I L 

Primary Qovernment Financial Statements St
, Mary Parish, State of Loui

siana 

Annual Financial Statements 
with Independent Auditors, R

eport 

and 

Independent Auditors , Rep
orts on Internal Accounting Cont

ro l, Comp liance, and Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended Decemb
er 31, 1999 

Un6er provisions of st.,to 1~w, thi.~ report is a public 
dncur:~eltt, A copy of the repork h:~5 been subn',it~ed I0 
the entity al~d otheF appcoi~ria!.~ flut'~iC officials. "lhe 
report is, available for public inspection at the Baton 
P.oug~ office of tl~e l_egisla~ivt: Auditor and, where 
appropriate, at the M fice of the parish clerk of court. 

\ Release Date
. JU[. I ?- 200L ~' 



ST . MARY PAR ISH COUNC IL 

C O N T E N T S 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Primary Government Financial Statements 

Combined Balance Sheet - All Fund 
Types and Account Groups 

Governmental Fund Type 

Combined Statement 
Expenditures and 
Balances 

of Revenues, 
Changes in Fund 

Combined Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balances - Budget and Actual: 

General Fund 

Certain Special Revenue Funds 

Certain Debt Service Funds 

Capital Projects Funds - Non-GAAP Basis 

Proprietary Fund Type - Enterprise 
Fund s : 

Combined Statement of Cash Flows 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

F INANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IND IV IDUAL FUNDS AND 
A CCOUN T GROUPS 

Special Revenue Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet 

Combining Schedule of 
and Changes in Fund 

Revenues, Expenditures 
Balances 

PA GE 

i-2 

9 

10 

11-39 

42-44 

45-47 



C O N T E N T S (continued) 

and 
Actual 

Road Construction and Maintenance Fund - 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Sanitation Fund - Statement of Revenues , 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - 
Budget and Actual 

Local Law Enforcement Block Grant - 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance 

Wards 5 & 8 Sales Tax Fund - Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Wards 1,2 ,3 ,4,7, and I0 Sales Tax Fund - 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Royalty Road Fund - 
Expenditures, and 

Statement of Revenues , 
Changes in Fund Balance 

and 
A ctual 

Joe C . Russo Boat Landing Fund - 
Statement of Revenues Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Berwick Boat Landing Fund 
Statement of Revenues Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Marcel Boat Landing Fund - 
Statement of Revenues Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

PAGE 

48 

49 

50 

5 1 

52 

53 

54 

55 

56 

57 

58 

59 

60 



C O N T E N T S ( contlnued ) 

Quintana Boat Landing Fund - 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Jessie B . Hayes Memorial Boat Landing Fund - 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Office of Justice Program Grant - 
Statement of Revenues , Expenditures, a~d 
Changes in Fund Balance 

Sixteenth Judicial District Drug Court, 
Byrne Federal Grant - 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance 

Local Law Enforcement Block Grant #2 - 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance 

OJP Juvenile Drug Court Fund - 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance 

Jail Operating Fund - 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and 

Debt Service Funds: 

Combining Balance Sheet 

Combining Schedule of 
and Changes in Fund 

and 
Actual 

Revenues, Expenditure~ 
Balances 

Sales Tax Bond Sinking Fund - Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balance - Budget and Actual 

pAGE 

61 

62 

63 

64 

65 

66 

67 

70-71 

72-73 

74 

Sales Tax Bond Reserve Fund 1994 , 1996 - Statement 
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 75 

Three-Fourths Per Cent Sales Tax 
Bond Reserve Fund Statement 
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Three-Fourths Per Cent Sales Tax 
Bond Sinking Fund - Statement 
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

76 

77 



C O N T E N T S (continued) 

St . Mary Parish Library General Obligations 
1996 Sinking Fund - Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance- 
Budget and Actual 

PAGE 

78 

Certificate of Indebtedness, Series 1997 and 1999 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 79 

Paving Series M Fund -- Statement of Revenues
, 

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - 
Budget and Actual 80 

Paving Series N Fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 81 

Paving Series 0 Fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 82 

1995 Paving Jupiter Green Acres #2 - Statement 
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 83 

Jail Sinking Fund '99 - Statement 
of[ Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Jail. Reserve Fund '99 - Statement 
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Capital Projects Funds: 

Combining Balance Sheet 

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balances 

84 

85 

8 7 

88 

Capital Improvement Fund ~ Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - 
Budget and Actual 89 

Sewerage Construction Funds: 

Fund - Statement of Revenues , 
Changes in Fund Balance -- 

90 

9 1 



C O N T E N T S (continued) 

PAGE 

92 

93 

Wards 5 & 8 Fund - Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balance - Budget and Actual 94 

Jail Construction Fund -Statement 
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Enterprise Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet 

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses 
and Changes in Retained Earnings 

Combining Schedule of Cash Flows 

GENERA L SUPPLEMENTARY INFOR/~ATION 

Compensation Paid Council Members and 
Parish President 

INTERNAL A CCOUNT ING CONTROL L COMPL IANCE , 
AND FEDERAL AWARD S 

Report on Compliance and on 
Financial Reporting Based 

Internal Control over 
on an Audit of Financial 

Statements Performed ~n Accordance with 
Government Auditinq Standards 

95 

96 

98 

99 

100 

102 

103- 104 

Report on Compliance With Requirements Applicable 
to Each Major Program and Internal Control Over 
Compliance in Accordance With OMB Circular A-133 
and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 105-107 



C O N T E N T S continued ) 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS, QUESTIONED COSTS AND 
FEDERA L AWARDS 

Summary of Audit Results 

Findings - Financial Statement Audit 

Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal 
Award Program s 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards 

Corrective Action Plan Prepared by Management 
of St . Mary Parish Council 

PAC~ 

108 

109-117 

118 

119 

120 

121 

122- 125 



])ITTS ~  ~VIA TT]~ 
a corporation of 

certified public accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUD ITORS ' REPORT 

To the St . Mary Parish Council 
Franklin, Louisiana 

We have audited the accompanying primary government financial 
statements and the combining and individual fund financial 
statements of the St . Mary Parish Council, as of and for the year 
ended December 31, 1999, as listed in the table of contents. 
These financial statements are the responsibility of the St . Mary 
Parish Council 's management . Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit . 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement . An audit includes examining , on a test 
basis , evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures ~n the 
financial statements . An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation . We believe that our audit provides a reasonable 
basis for our opinion . 

A primary government is a legal entity or body politic and 
includes all funds, organization, institutions, agencies, 
departments, and offices that are not legally separate . Such 
legally separate entities are referred to as component units . In 
our opinion , the primary government financial statements present 
fairly , in all material respects, the financial position of the 
primary government of the St . Mary Parish Council, as of December 
3], ]999, and the results of its operations and cash flows of its 
proprietary fund types for the year then ended in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles. Also , in our opinion, 
the combining and individual fund financial statements referred 
to above present fairly , in all material respects, the financial 
position of each of the individual funds of the St . Mary Parish 
Council, as of December 31, 1999, and the results of operations 
of such funds and the cash flows of the individual proprietary 
funds for the year then ended in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles. 
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Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on 
the primary government financial statements taken as a whole and 
on the combining and individual fund financial statements. The 
accompanying information listed ~s General Supplementary 
Information in the table of contents is presented for the 
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the 
primary government, combining, and individual fund financial 
statements of the St . Mary Parish Council. Such information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the primary government, combining , and individual fund financial 
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the financial statements of each 
respective individual fund taken as a whole . 

In accordance with Government Auditinq Standazds, we have also 
issued our report dated April 21, 2000, on ouz consideration of 
the St . Mary Parish Council 's internal control over financial 
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws , regulations, contracts and grants. 

April 2i, 2000 
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ST. M ARY PAR1SI| COIINCII* 

G( )VI (RN2x rENTAl. FUND TYPES 
Combined Schedule of Revenues. Expencl0ur~s. and Changes in Fund Balances 

Far the Year lnded December 31. 1999 

RI VI NL tS 
Taxes 
Ad xaim~  
Sales 
Othcl taxes, penalties. & interesls, etc 
Inlergove~ enlal revenues 
Fedela[ granls 
Slate grants 
State funds 
Palish lram portation funds 
State revenue sharing 
Royall) road funds 
Sex erance 1axes 
Criminal courl fund 
Local 

(ianfing 
Spccia[ a~ ssmcnts 
Interest 
I,ieen~es & permits 
l:ces. Charges. & Conmllssion 
I'hitimaclul "I rihe 
Olher Jevvnues 

1,:Xl'l NI)ll/_q(ES 
Current: 
General gox emmenl 
Public sa rely 
Public ~orks 
Sanitalion 
Cultme ~nd recreation 
Ilealth and x~elfa~ 
Economic development & assistance 
('~p~tal o~ ay 
Debt se~'ice 
Principal 
Interest 
Fees 

Excess/drfi~i~ncy) of revenues 
nver (underl expcndilures 

( Yll H :R FINANCING SOITR(?ES (I rSES 
Ihoceeds from bonds 
(}pelating Iransf~rs in 
Opcratin~ lransfe~ out 
Sale of cquipmem 

"l olal olhcr financing sources(uses} 

Excess (deficiency) of rexenucs 
and nthel sources over (under) 
expenditures anti olher uses 

SPECIAl, DEBT CAP1 I'AL TOTAl. 
GENER+M . REVENqrE SERVICE PROJI~C] S (NII'M ORANI)UN 
~'Lr~D ~:L'~DS ~ rb~DS FL~ O~ ONLY) 

$1.449.017 ~24~824 
$2.983.000 1.275.588 

92.355 

108.253 
236.468 

320.133 
3.809 

514.462 
333.313 

2.428.661 
750.143 
23.464 
9.031 105.978 

1.417.078 

113.072 
293.662 
269.279 

239.360 
23.688 
666.1)06 

502.483 

202.400 
210.762 

7.837 

3.678.057 k.710AI12 2.441.057 

3.151.196 
267.879 

343.998 
268+743 
167.276 

421.913 
915.781 

4.022.419 

420.072 
12.000 

543 
28.447 

6.000 

$175.390 
3,031.059 

165.093 

207.174 

831.280 

4.499.990 

75.655 13.878.00 
53.088 

1.42%072 
977.664 
14.175 

4.199.092 5.920.928 2.453.901 

0~1.460 
199.659) 
1.601 

424.520 
(3.592.746 

2.394 

$1.69g.841 
4.258.588 
92.355 

603.776 
3.271.336 

9.329.122 

2.844) (9.807.570) (7.612.365 

3.086.429 
958.352 2.39L299 
178.363) (459.521) 

3.086.429 
4.855.631 
5,430.289 

3.995 

lhc accumpan~in!, notcs arc an inlcgral pall 

17.435.797 

$i2.339.19~ 



ST. ,M ARY PAR1SI1 COUNCIL 

GOVERNM ENTAL FUND TYPE - GENERAL FUND 
Slaletnent (If Revenues. l'xpenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget arid Aelual 

For the Year Ended December 31. 1999 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Ad ~alorcln 
Oilier ta~cs, penalties. & interest, elc 
Licenses and permits 
I nt er g overllr/lelllal revenues 
Federld grants 
Slate l~nds 
Stale grants 
$1ale revcm~e sharing (net) 
Se~ erance taxes 

Local grants 
Criminal Court Fund 
Chalges for services 
Interest 
Aitporl operations 

"1 oral RevemJes 

I'XPEN DI'I IJRt'S 
Current 
General govefnnlctll 
Legislative 
Judicial 
Execulive 
I'lections 
Finance and administrative 
Cotlrihf~use 
Other 
Public Sa(ety 
ltealth and welfare 
Culture & recreation 
[':corlomic development 
AiH~orl operations 

~xcess (deficiency) of revenues o~er 
expenditures 

OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 
Gain on sale of equipment 

ACL123d, 

$1.449.017 
92.355 
293.662 

VARIANCF 
FAVORABLI~ 

BUDGET~ (UNI:A ~ LIdJ 

$1.239.735 
71.875 
300.810 

08.253 110.006 

236.468 
333.313 
750.143 
9.031 
23.464 
232.566 
113.072 
3&713 

278.326 
670,561 
92.940 
65,497 
342,242 
700,397 
646.864 
267,879 
268.743 
343.998 
167.276 
354,369 

4.199,092 

370.141 
33~043 
750.t43 
9.031 
23.015 
241.740 
120.955 
40.000 

3.607.494 

268.633 
679.190 
98.631 
95.968 
351.722 
703.728 
700,224 
279,578 
275,348 
382.955 
172.236 
380.049 

$209.282 
20,480 
(7.148) 

(1,753) 

(133,673) 
3,270 

449 
(9.174) 
(7,883) 
(3.287) 

70.563 

89,170 

(521.035) (780.768) 259,733 

.081.460 
(199,659) 

1.601 

.081,460 
(199,659 

1.601 

0 

E,'-:~ess (deficieucy) of revenues and other 
financing sources over (under) expendilures 
and other financing uses 362.367 102.634 259.733 

Fund balance ni beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year $ I. 178.053 $917.989 

nlegral parl Of these finant;ial statements. 

$260.064 



ST. M ARY PARISII (?O UNCI 

CERTAIN SPFCIAL REVENUI~ FLINDS 
Combined Schedule of Revenues. |!xpendilures. and Changes 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended l)eeember 31. 1999 

REV|:NUI'S 
"l'ax~;s 
Sales 
] tlle/goverlllnenlal revenues 
Pmish transportation funds 
Royalty road funds 
Slate grants 
Gaming 
lntelesl 
Licenses & Pcrmils 
Fees. Charges, & Commission 
Other revenues 

F.XPENDITURES 
Current: 
General government 
Pul,'|i~ safely 
Public works 
tleallh and W elfare 
Culture and recreation 
Capilal outlay 
Debl service 

Tt~tal expeuditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES 
Operating transfers in 
Operating t[ansfers out 
Gain on sale of equipment 

Total other financing sources 
(uses| 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
mid other sources over (tinder) 
expenditures and other uses 

ulld balances at 
beginning of year 

und balances at 
end o|'veat 

VARIANCE 
I:AVOIL~.B] ,I! 

~C]~d~  [LUI)GET LL~J,A~ O3LQ,~AI~L]~ 

82.983.000 $3.018.044 

514.462 
2,q28.661 

3.809 
1.417.078 
238,818 
23.688 
663.933 
6.787 

8.280.236 8.136.435 143.80 

3.504 
912.408 

4.022.419 
12.000 

420.072 
75.655 
53.088 

1,301 
7.245 
66.867 

85.521 
26.077 

(27 

5.,199,146 5.786.130 286.984 

424.520 
3.592.746 

2.394 

424.520 
3.59g.942 

2.394 
6.196 

436.98 

6.583.992 6.590.031 (6.039 

$6.199.250 $5.768.30g 

6- 



ST. M ARY PARISH CO UNCIL 

CERTAIN DEBT SERVICE FUN DS 
Combined Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes ill Fund 11alanccs 

Budget and A ctual 
For the Year Ended December 31. 1999 

RFVFNUI~S 
Taxes 
Sales 
Ad Valorem 
Specilll assessments 
Interest 
lntergovernnlelllal 

EX I'IiN I)ITUI(I:;S 
CUlTCIIt: 
General goverlllnenl 
Culture and recreation 
Public safety 
Debt service 
Principal 
lnleresI 
Fees 

TotM Cxl)eudilurcs 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

OTIIEI~. FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operat01g transfels in 
Oper~lt01g transfers out 

Total other financing sources 
(uses) 

!xcess (deficiency) of revenues 
and othcr soulces over (under} 
expenditures and other uses 

Fllrld balances ~t 
beg0m ing of 3ear 

Fund balances at 
elld of year 

Tilt! tlccolllpanyiu~ I/otes arc ~t11 integra 
--~_ 

A{2"]2UAkL 

$1,275,588 
249,824 
202,400 
210,762 
502,483 

2.441.057 

543 
6,00{) 
28.447 

427,072 
977,533 
14.175 

2.453.770 

VA RIANCI! 
FA VORAI31J! 

13_~ :~ (1J35!12/~ V_QILA 13 L 1~ ) 

$1,265,850 
230,000 
148,177 
188,388 
502.483 

2,334,898 

370 
(6,000) 

427,072 
974,642 
15,061 

2.411.]45 

958,352 
(I,178,3631 

$3.674.99 

$9.738 
19,824 
54.223 
22.374 

06.159 

(173) 
(I 2.000) 
(28.447) 

2.891 
886 

63.534 

1,006,800 (48.448) 
(1,178,3631 

(171,563) (48,448) 

(247,810) 15,086 

3.907.710 

$3,659,900 $15.09 



I'XPF~NDYI URES 
Ctuten~: 
General ~overnnlgn 
Public salk'ty 
Sanitation 
Public W orks 
Capital millay 

Total expendittlres 

ST. M ARY PARISIt COUNCIL 

CAPITAL PROJI iCTS FUNDS 
Combined Schedule of Revenues. l,.'xpendilurcs and 

Changes in Fund Balances - Budgel 

and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis) 
For the year ended l)ecelnber 31. 1999 

,
.
'xcess (deficiency) of revenues 
oxcl (under~ expet~ditu~es 

O']HER FINANCING SODRCES (USES) 
Operating Iransfers in 
Operating transfers oul 
Proceeds from special assessment bol~ds 
Proceeds frail1 long lelrm bollds 

]otal other financing sources 

(uses} 

:xcess (detieielmy) of revenues 
gild olhel sources over (undel) 
expenditures and other (uses) 

Fund bahmees at 
lmginning of),ear 

Fund balances at 
end o1"~ ear 

]he accolllpanMIIg i~olCS ale all inlegltl 

VARIANCE 
FAVORAI~I.E 

/~ TtJaL m ~.L~Z LU~ z~VORA~3LI~ 

$297,174 

107,454 
~.031.059 
165,093 
g31.280 

$274.270 S22.904 

154.129 
.038.004 
167.862 

.028.697 

4.432./)60 4.663.162 

42.496 
6.-156.945 
447.906 

3.911.606 
3 440.677 

42.683 
7.124.257 
497.566 

4.037.571 
3.633.713 

(46.875) 
(6.945) 
(2.7697 

1197.417) 

187 
667.312 
49.6611 
125.965 
193.036 

4.299.630 15.335.790 1.036.161 

(9.867.570) (10.672.628) 805.05g 

2.391.299 
(459.521 
236.429 

2.850.000 

2.410.570 

(484.992) 
236A29 

3.996.00/) 

5.018.207 6,158.007 

(4.849.363) (4.514.621) 

(19.271 
25.471 

$1.264.373 $1.599.12 



ST. M ARY PARISH COUNCH 

PROPRIH 'ARY FUND TYPE - ENTERPRISE I'ZINI)S 
Combhled Slat~/tlcl|t of Rcvctlttes. Expenses and Changes in Retained Earllings 

For the Year Ended December 31. 1999 

Operathlg revenues 
Charges for sen,ices 
Licenses and perunits 

Non-operaOng revenues (expenses 
Interest earn ings 
Gifls~donafions 
S2ate gran~s 
Insurance po'}'llleUl s 
SMe of equipnlenl 

Other financing sources 
Opcrafin,g transfers in 

Add depreciation of fixed assets acquired 
b3 grants, entitlements, and shared reveJm es 
exlerllally restricted for capital acquisitions 
and construction thai reduces conlribuled 
capital 

Decrease in retained earnings 

Retained earnings(accumulated deficit) 
at beginning of year 

Returned earnings(accunlulated deficit) 
at end of year 

$905,080 
223,431 
29.962 
252.249 
51,513 
130,111 
494,521 
330.000 
129,938 
546,535 
66,252 

27,484 
66.377 
15.502 
17,442 
10.706 

$|.678.361 
1.440 

679.80 

3.159,592 

479,79 

237.5 

(1,242,2801 

574,658 

657.6227 

304.450 

(363,1727 

(I,761,4877 



ST. M ARY PARISH CO UNCIL 

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - ENTERPRISE FUN DS 
Combined Statement of Cash Flows 

For tile Year Ended December 31. 1999 

Increase (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Cash received from charges for sen,ices 
Cash paym ents to suppliers for goods & sen, ices 
Cash payments to cmplo3vcs for sen'ices 

Net cash flows (deficiency) from operating aclivities 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities 
Interest 
Contributions 
Operating grants received 
Operating transfers in from other fonds 

Net cash flows from noncapital financing activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financial activities 
Proceeds fl-onl sale of assets 
Fixed asset acquisitions 
Insurauce proceeds 
Procecds from debt issuance 

Net cash flows from capital and related financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

$1,695.473 
(1,345.714) 
(898,459) 

27.484 
66.377 
40.502 
74.658 

809.021 

10.706 

(1.041,659) 
17.442 

750.000 

(2 1 qO) 



Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash, provided by 
operating activities: 
Operating loss 

Adjustments to recor~cile operating loss to net cash provided 
by operating activities: 
Depreciation and am ortization 
Decrease in accotmts receivable 
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Total adjustments 

Net cash (used for) operating activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 

($1.479.791) 

546.535 
17.522 

367,034 

931.091 

($548,70(I) 



NO TE 1 

ST . MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31, 1999 

SUMMARY OF SIGN IF ICANT ACCOUNT ING POL ICIES 

On July 16, 1983, the voters of the parish approved a change in 
the form of parish government from the police jury form of 
government to the parish council system . The newly elected 
parish council was seated on November 26, 1984 . The St . Mary 
Parish Council is the governing authority fez" St . Mary Parish . 
The parish council consists of eleven members, eight of whom 
are elected from single-member districts and three elected at 
large . The parish president, elected by the voters of the 
parish , is the chief executive officer of the parish and is 
responsible for carrying out the policies adopted by the parish 
council and for exercising such general executive authority as 
authorized by the charter . 

The Council, under the provisions of Louisiana Revised 
Statutes , enacts ordinances, sets policy and establishes 
programs in such fields as social welfare, transportation , 
drainage , industrial inducement and health services . 

In 1984, the Financial Accounting Foundation established the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) to promulgate 
generally accepted accounting principles and reporting 
standards with respect to activities and transactions of state 
and local governmental accounting and financial reporting 
standards . GASB pronouncements are recognized as generally 
accepted accounting principles for state and local governments . 

The following is a summary 
policies used in preparing the 

A . Reporting Entity 

Of the significant accounting 
financial statements : 

The GASB has established several criteria for determining 
the governmental reporting entity . The reporting entity 
for St:. Mary Parish should include the St . Mary Parish 
Council, which as governing authority of the parish is the 
primary government, and other governmental entities within 
the parish for which the Council has financial 
accountability . Financial accountability is determined by 
the Council, on the basis of applying the following 
criteria from those established by the GASB : 

Financial benefit or burden 
Appointment of! a voting majority 
Imposition of will 
Fiscally dependent 



NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued ) 

Based on the previous criteria , the Council has determined that 
the following component units are part of the reporting entity : 

Compo nent Unit 
St . Mary Parish 

W ater & Sew er 
St . Mary Parish 
Sixteenth Judici 

Criminal Court 
Hospital Service 

No . ] 
No . 2 
No . 3 

Consolidated 
Dist . #] 
Library 
al District 

District 

Fairview Treatment Center 
St . Mary Parish Water and 
Sewer Comm . #5 

Waterworks District : 
No . 2 
No . 3 
No . 5 
No . 6 
No . 7 

Sewerage District : 
No . 1 
No . 2 
No . 4 
N o . 5 
No . 7 
No . 8 
No . 9 
No . i0 
No . ii 

Wards 5 & 8 Joint Sewer Comm . 
Consolidated Gravity Drainage 

District No . 1 
Consolidated Gravity Drainage 

District No . 2 
Gravity Drainage District : 

No . 2 
No . 3 
No . 5 
No . 6 

Wax Lake East Drainage District 
Sub Gravity Drainage District 

- 12 

Fiscal 
Year End Criteria Used 

December 3] 
December 31 

December 3] 

September 30 
September 30 
September 30 
September 30 

September 30 

March 31 
September 30 
September 30 
September 30 
September 30 

September 30 
September 30 
September 30 
September 30 
September 30 
September 30 
September 30 
September 30 
September 30 
September 30 

September 30 

September 30 

September 30 
December 31 
September 30 
September 30 

#i September 30 

2 , 3 
2 , 3 

4 

2 , 3 
2 , 3 
2 , 3 
3 

2 , 3 

2 , 3 
2 
2 , 3 
2 , 3 

I, 2 , 3 

2, 3 

2 , 3, 4 

2 , 3 
2 , 3 
2 , 3 
2 , 3 

2, 3 



NOTE i - SUMMA RY OF SIGN IF ICANT ACCOUNTING POL ICIES 

Component Unit 
Gravity Sub-Drainage District 

No . ] of Gravity Drainage 
District No .2 

Mosquito Control District No . 1 
Communications District (911) 
St . Mary Parish Housing Program 
St . Mary Parish Assessor 
St . Mary Parish Clerk of Court 
St . Mary Parish Sheriff Dept . 

(continued ) 

Fiscal 
Year End Criteria Used 

September 30 
September 30 
December 31 

September 30 
September 30 
September 30 
September 30 

September 
September 
September 
September 
September 
September 
December 
September 

30 
30 
30 
30 
30 
30 
31 
30 

Decemb er 31 
June 30 
June 30 

2 , 3 
2 , 3 

1, 3 , 4 

2 r 
i, 2 , 

2 , 3 
2 , 3 

2 , 3 
1 , 2, 3 
i, 2 , 3 

2, 3 
2 , 3 

I, 2 , 3 
2 , 3, 4 
i, 3, 4 
4 

i, 4 
1, 4 

3 
3 , 4 

The GASB provides for the issuance of primary government 
financial statements which are separate from those of the 
reporting entity . However, a primary government 's financial 
statements are not a substitute for the reporting entity 's 
financial statements . The Council has chosen to issue 
financial statements of the primary government only . As such , 
the accompanying financial statements are not intended to and 
do not report in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. Audit reports for component units can be obtained 
from the administrative offices of each component and from the 
Clerk of the Parish Council . 

The parish school board and municipal level governments, are 
excluded from the accompanying financial statements as they are 
considered autonomous governments . These units of government 
issue financial statements separate from that of the Council . 

A lso in accordance with GASB Statement No . 14, the St . Mary 
Community Action Committee, Association, Inc. (CAA ) and the 
West St . Mary Parish Port, Harbor, and Terminal District (Port) 
are considered to be related organizations of the St . Mary 
Parish Council, primary government . Several different primary 
governments or other bodies appoint members to the board of the 
Port and CAA but none are considered to be financially 
accountable because they do not impose their will or have a 
financial benefit or burden relationship with the Port or CAA . 

- 13- 



NOTE ] SUMMA RY OF SIGN
__ IF_ !CANT_ _ _ACCOU_ _ NT ING POL 

B . Fund Accounting 

C IE S
_  (continued) 

The Council uses funds and account 
groups: to report on its financial position and th

e results of its operations
. Fund accounting is designed to d

emonstrate legal compliance and to aid fi
nancial management by segregatin

g transactions related to certain g
overnment functions or activities

. 

A fund is a separate accounti
ng entity with a self-balancing set of 

accounts. An account group , on the other hand
, is a financial reporting devi

ce designed to provide accountability for certain assets and liabiliti
es that are not recorded in the f

unds because they do not di
rectly affect net expendable availabl

e financial resources
. 

The Council uses two categories of fund
s: governmental and proprietary

. Each category , in turn
, is divided into sep

arate "fund types". 

~ove___rrnmental Funds 

Genera/ Fund 

The General Fund 
Council. It is 
resources, except 
other funds . 

Special Revenue Funds 

iS the general operating fund of the 
used to account for all financial 

those required to be accounted for in 

Special revenue funds are used to account 
of specific revenue sources that are 
expenditures for specified purposes

. 

Debt Service Funds 

Debt Service Funds are used to account f
o r 

o f reso urce s for , and the payment of
, pr'incipal, interest and related costs

. 

Capital Projects Funds 

- 14~ 

for the proceeds 
earmarked for 

the accumulation 
long-term debt 



NOTE i - SUMMA RY OF SIGN IF ICANT ACCOUNT ING POL ICIES 

Proprietary Fund 

Enterprise Funds 

(continued) 

Enterprise funds are used to account for activities of 
providing goods and services to outside part:ies similar to 
those found in the private sector, where the determination 
of net: income is necessary or useful to sound financial 
administration . 

C . Ba~;is of Accounting 

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to 
a fund is determined by its measurement focus. All 
governmental funds are accounted for using a current 
financial resources measurement focus . With this 
measurement focus, only current assets and current 
liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. 
Operating statements of these funds present increases 
(i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases 
(i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net 
cu rrent asset s . 

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of 
economic resources measurement focus. With this 
measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities 
associated with the operation of these funds are included 
on the balance sheet . Fund equity (i.e., net total assets) 
is segregated into contributed capital and retained 
earnings components . Proprietary fund-type operating 
statements present increases (e .g., revenues) and decreases 
(e .g ., expenses) in net total assets. 

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used by all 
governmental fund types. Under the modified accrual basis 
of accounting , revenues are recognized when susceptible to 
accrual (i.e ., when they become both measurable and 
available). "Measurable" means the amount of the 
transaction can be determined and "available" means 
collectible within the current period or soon enough 
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current 
period . Expenditures are recorded when the related fund 
liability is incurred . Principal and interest on general 
long-term debt are recorded as fund liabilities when due . 

The following is a summary 
revenues and description of how 

of the major governmental 
they are recognized : 

Ad valorem taxes and the related State revenue sharing 
(which is based on population and homesteads in the Parish) 
are recorded in the year the taxes are assessed . 



NOTE ] - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE (continued ) 

Federal and State aid and grants are recorded when the 
Council has met the requirements of the grant and is 
entitled to receive the funds. 

Interest income on investments is recorded when the 
investments have matured and the income is available . 

Sales and use tax revenues are recorded in the month 
collected by the Council's sales tax department . 

Substantially all other revenues are recorded when they 
become available to the Council. 

The accrual basis of accounting is utJlized by proprietary 
fund types . Under this method , revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities 

are incurred . 

The Council reports deferred revenue on its combined 
balance sheet . Deferred revenues arise when a potential 
revenue does not meet both the "measurable " and "availab le " 
criteria for recognition in the current period . In 
subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria 
are met, the liability for deferred revenue is removed from 
the combined balance sheet and revenue is recognized . 

D . Budgetary Practices 

The Council follows these 
budgetary data reflected in 

procedures in establishing the 
the financial statements: 

i. Ninety days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, 
the Parish President presents to the Council the annual 
operating budget which was prepared by the Director of 
Finance under the direction of the Chief Administrative 

officer . 

of 
be 
in 

3 . No later than the second to last regular meeting of the 
fiscal year, the Council enacts an ordinance to adopt 
the annual operating budget for the ensuing fiscal 
year. The Council may adjust the budget as proposed by 
the Parish President or amend it , as they see fit, by a 

vote of the majority of the Council. 

4 The Parish President may accept or veto the entire 
budget as approved by the Council or he may line item 
veto certain appropriations . 

16- 



NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued ) 

5 . Should the Council and Parish President be unable to 
adopt a budget prior to the beginning of the year, then 
fifty percent of the prior year 's budget shall be 
appropriated for the upcoming year; until such time as 
a new budget is properly enacted . 

6. The Director of Finance, under the direction of the 
Chief Administrative Officer, has the authority to 
alter , and must approve all changes in budgeted amounts 
within function lines. However, budget adjustments 
that cross function lines require approval of the 
Council . 

7. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a 
management control device during the year . 

8 . Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), except 
one Capital Project Fund budget which is on a non-GAAP 
budgetary basis. Certain projects in the Cypremort 
Point and Vicinity Fund (Capital Projects) are being 
funded by the Council and Louisiana Community 
Development Block Grants (LCDBG ). For financial 
reporting purposes both Parish amounts and LCDBG 
amounts are reported as revenues and expenditures, for 
budgetary reporting purposes only Psrish amounts are 
reported as revenues and expenditures . Because of 
this, the revenues and expenditures are each $67,936 
less for budget reporting purposes than for financial 
reporting purposes . 

9 All special revenue funds have adopted budgets except 
for seven funds . Accordingly, the Combined Statement 
of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
-  Budget and Actual, Certain Special Revenue Funds, 
omits actual activity for those funds without budgets. 

- 17 



NOTE ] - SUMMA RY OF SIGN IF ICANT ACCOUNTING POL IC IES 

i0 

ll 

(continued) 

The following is a reconciliation of the funds omitted , 
which had activity during the year : 

Less excess of revenues over expendi 
tures for omitted funds: 

OJP Juvenile Drug Court 
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant #2 
Office of Justice Program Grant 
Royalty Road Fund 
]6th Judicial District, Byrne Federal 

Grant 
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant 
Glenwild Boat Landing 

Deficiency of revenues and other 
financing sources under expenditures 
and other financing uses(budgeted 
Special Revenue Funds only) 

$(376,748) 

1,6 
9 
5 

3,727 
1 ,050 

25 

All debt service funds have adopted budgets except for 
one fund . Accordingly , the Combined Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - 
Budget and Actual, Certain Debt Service Funds, omits 
actual activity for this fund without a budget . 

The fo llow ing is 
which had little 

a reconciliation of 
activity during the 

Fund balances at end of year 
(all Debt Service Funds) 

Less : Fund ba]a~]ces for omitted funds 

Paving Series L Fund 

Fund balance at end of year (budgeted 
Debt Service Funds only) 

the funds omitted 
year : 

$3,678,986 

3,995) 

Budget appropriations ].apse at year end except for 
capital outlays or items encumbered by authorized and 
issued purchase orders. 

The budget amounts shown in the financial statements 
are the final authorized amounts as revised and amended 
for the year . 

- 18- 



NOTE ] - SUMMA RY OF SIGN IF ICANT ACCOUNTING POL IC IES 

E . Encumbrance s 

Funds are encumbered when purchase 
is the Council 's policy to reserve 
encumbrances at year end . 

F . Cash and Cash Equivalents 

(continued) 

orders are issued . 
fund ba lan ces for 

It 

any 

For financial statement purposes, cash and cash equivalents 
include cash on hand , demand deposits, and short term 
investments with original maturities of less than three 
months . 

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost , which 
approximates market . 

Certain short-term interest bearing cash accounts are 
maintained on a pooled basis, interest levenue or expense 
is allocated to each participating fund based upon its pro 
rata share of the total pooled account balance . 

G . Inve stments 

Investments are stated at cost or amortized costs 

H . Receivables 

Receivables are stated at net realizable value after 
provision for estimated uncollectible accounts . 

I . Inv ento r le s 

No inventories are recorded at year end as the amounts are 
immaterial. 

Materials and supplies are considered expenditures by the 
Council when purchased . 

J . Fixed Assets 

General fixed assets are not capitalized in the funds used 
to acquire or construct them . Instead , capital acquisition 
and construction are reflected as expenditures in 
governmental funds, and the related assets are reported in 
the general fixed assets account group . A ll purchased 
fixed assets are valued at cost where historical records 
are available and at an estimated historical cost where no 
historical records exist . Donated fixed assets are valued 
at their estimated fair market value on the date received . 



NOTE 1 -~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued ) 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add 
to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives 
are not capitalized . Improvements are capitalized and 
c|epreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related 
fixed assets, as applicable. 

Public domain ("infrastructure") general fixed assets 
consisting of roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets 
and sidewalks, drainage systems and lighting systems are 
not capitalized, as these assets are immovable and of value 
only to the government . 

Fixed assets used in the proprietary fund type operations 
are included on the balance sheets of the funds . 

Depreciation of all exhaustible fixed assets used by the 
proprietary fund type operations is charged as an expense 
against operations; and accumulated depreciation is 
reported on the balance sheets. Depreciation is computed 
using the straight-line method based on the estimated 
useful life of the various assets. The following is a 
sun~ ary of estimated useful lives by classification of 
fixed assets : 

Category 

Buildings 
Equipment 
Vehicles 

K . Long-term Ob ligations 

Years 

10-50 
2-40 
2-4 

Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a 
governmental fund when due , or when resources have been 
accumulated in the debt service fund for payment early in 
the following year . For other long-term obligations, only 
that portion expected to be financed from expendable 
available financial resources is reported as a fund 
liability of a governmental fund . The remaining portion of 
such obligations is reported in the general long-term debt 
account, group . Long-term liabilities expected to be 
financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for 
in those funds . 

L . Compensated Absences 

Employees earn vacation and sick leave annually at varying 
rates depending upon length of service . These compensated 
absences are allowed to accumulate from period to period if 
not used . 

Upon termination an employee is compensated for accumulated 
vacation time ; but , employees are not compensated for sick 
time unless termination is due to retirement . 

20- 



NOTE ] - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

An accrual is made for the amount of compensation the 
employees will receive in the future based upon services 
performed in the current year for vacation time not used . 
An accrual is also made for accumulated sick time estimated 
to be paid to employees at retirement . The portion of this 
accumulated sick pay estimated to be paid to employees 
retiring within the next year is recorded as a liability 
within the fund to which the particular employees ' salary 
is allocated . In accordance with GASB No . 16, which the 
Council adopted in 1994, the liability for the portion of 
this accumulated sick pay, totaling approximately $115,000, 
projected to be paid in later years is recorded in the 
General Long-term Debt Account Group . 

Compensated absences by fund are as follows : Accrued 
vacation time - General Fund $28,247, Special Revenue 
Fund-Road Construction and Maintenance, $20,003, Enterprise 
Funds-Reduction and Transfer $9,872, Small Animal Control 
$],989, and Kemper Williams Park $3,013. 

M . Fund Equity 

Contributed capital is recorded in proprietary funds that 
have received capital grants or contributions from other 
governments or other funds . 

Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not 
appropriable for expenditure or legally segregated for a 
specific future use . Significant changes in the reserved 
portion of fund balances in 1999 for increases or decreases 
in the reserve for non-current portion of receivables are 
approximately 

Special Revenue Fund 
Sanitation Fund 

Debt Service Funds 
Sales Tax Bond Sinking Fund 
3/4% Sales Tax Bond Sinking Fund 

Capita] Projects Fund 
Cypremort Point & Vicinity Fund 

Increase/(Decrease) 
in Reserves 

$ 180,000 

(190,000) 
(160,000) 

(220,000) 

Other significant changes in the reserved portion of fund 
balances were: $55,000 increase in reserve for encumbrances 
in Road Construction and Maintenance Fund (Special 
Revenue), $12,000 increase in reserve for encumbrances in 
Kemper Williams Park Fund (Enterprise), $41,000 decrease in 
reserve for encumbrances in Sanitation Fund (Special 
Revenue), $27,000 increase in reserve for encumbrances in 
Quintana Boat Landing Fund (Special Revenue), $8,000 
decrease in reserve for encumbrances in Jessie B . Hayes 
Memorial Fund (Special Revenue), $5,000 decrease in reserve 
for encumbrances in Jail Operating Fund (Special Revenue), 
$82,000 increase in reserve for encumbrances in the 
Reduction and Transfer Fund (Enterprise). 



NOTE ] - SUMMARY OF SIGN IF ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Designated 
future use 
designated 

(continued) 

fund balances represent tentative plans for 
of financial resources. No fund balances were 
by the Council at December 31, 1999 . 

N . ]nterfund Transactions 

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, 
expenditures or expenses. Transactions that constitute 
reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses 
initially made from it that are properly applicable to 

another fund, are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the 
reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses 
in the fund that is reimbursed . 

All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external 
transactions and reimbursements, are reported as transfers. 
Nonrecurring or nonroutine permanent transfers of equity 
are reported as residual equity transfers. All other 
interfund transfers are reported as operating transfers. 

O . Total Columns on Combined Statements 

The total columns on the combined statements are captioned 
Memorandum Only to indicate that they are presented only to 
facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do 
not present financial position or results of operations in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles . 
Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation . 
Interfund eliminations have not been made in the 
aggregation of this data . 

NOTE 2 - FUND DEF IC ITS 

The following individual funds 
balances (retained earnings) at 

Fund 

Capital Projects Funds 
Amelia and Vicinity 
Wards 5 & 8 
Spine Road Construction 

Special Revenue Fund : 
Jail Operating 

Enterr~rise Fund : 

of the Council had deficit fund 
December 31 , [[999 : 

Deficit 
Am ount 

Reduction and Transfer 
(deficit in retained earnings) 

k 22 

$ 1 033,796 
1 525 ,787 

57 ,708 

30 ,33] 

2 262 ,344 



NOTE 2 - FUND DEFICITS(continued) 

]n December 1973, the voters of St . Mary Parish approved a 
three-quarter per cent sales tax (Sales Tax ) in order to fund 
construction and operation of liquid and solid waste 
facilities. The Council receives the portion of the sales tax 
for the unincorporated areas of the Parish . In June of 1982, 
the St . Mary Parish Police Jury (Police Jury, the forerunner of 
the Council) earmarked these funds to be equally divided 
between liquid waste and solid waste expenditures. The half 
earmarked for liquid waste was further allocated to five 
geographic locations within the non-incorporated areas of the 
parish based upon population in these areas. 

The construction of the liquid waste treatment facilities were 
to be funded by a combination of 75% federal grants and 25% 
local matching funds . The Police Jury planned to issue bonds 
secured by the proceeds of the sales tax in order to provide 
its 25% of the project costs. The Police Jury decided to 
construct the first two facilities in the most densely 
populated areas of the Parish , Amelia and Wards 5 & 8 . The 
Police Jury originally planned to issue additional debt in 
future years to construct sewerage facilities in the remaining 
a r e a s . 

Subsequent to the development of the plan to construct these 
facilities but prior to actual start of construction, the 
Federal government ceased funding most local sewerage projects. 
This left the Police Jury with the full burden of financing 
these facil~ties. The Police Jury then issued bonds to finance 
100% of the facility construction costs in these two areas . 

Due to a downturn in the economy , the sales tax collections 
declined from the amounts originally estimated to be collected . 
While the overall sales tax collected has been sufficient to 
pay the bonded indebtedness, the portion of the sales tax 
proceeds originally allocated to the two areas proved 
insufficient to fund the debt payments allocated to the two 
a r e a s . 

The excess of monies required , to fund the debt attributable to 
the sewerage projects in these two areas over the proceeds of 
the tax allocated to these areas, have resulted in the 
accumulation of substantial deficient fund balances and 
substantial payable balances to other funds in both these 
funds . 

Failure to either develop new funding sources or to reallocate 
existing funding or combine certain existing fund operations 
could result in these two funds being unable to continue to 
operate and repay their obligations to other funds . 

?3 



NOTE 2 - FUND DEFICITS(continued) 

The Council has entered into agreements with Sewer District #2 
and Sewer District #8 to provide additional funding relating to 
the debt of Wards 5 & 8 which will fully fund any future debt 
needs for that fund . The Council has entered into 
with St . Mary Parish Water and Sewer Comm ission No .l 
additional funding for the Amelia & Vicinity debt , 
fully fund any future debt needs for that fund . The 
also considering several other possibilities 
additional revenues for these two funds. 

Council is 
to raise 

The deficit in the Jail Operating Fund and the Spine Road 
Construction Fund will be made up by revenues from next year . 

The deficit in the retained earnings and fund balance in the 
Reduction and Transfer Fund, an enterprise fund, is the result 
of accounting adjustments made to accrue estimated costs to 
close and monitor the Council 's landfill in accordance with 
GASB No . ]8 as detailed in Note 21. The total estimated cost 
to close and monitor the landfill for the required thirty year 
period Js $5,274,000. Of this amount, $3,750,000 has been 
accrued as a liability and resultant reduction of the fund 's 
retained earnings as of December 31, 1999 . However actual 
expenditure of funds are estimated not to be required until 
2003 and thereafter . 

NOTE 3 - EXPEND ITURES - EXCESS OF ACTUAL OV ER APPROPR IA TED 

Actual expenditures exceeded appropriated 
significant amounts in the following funds for 

Fund 

Special Revenue Funds : 
Gaming Receipt Fund 
Lawrence J . Michel Memorial 

Boat Landing Fund 
Office of Justice Program 

Grant Fund 
16th Judicial District Drug 

Court Byrne Federal Grant 
Local Law Enforcement B lock 

Grant Fund #2 
OJP Juvenile Drug Court Fund 
Jail Operating Fund 

Debt Service Funds : 
Sales Tax Bond Sinking Fund 
Certificates of Indebtedness 

Sinking Fund 

24 

expenditures by 
1999 : 

Actual Budqet 

$661,235 $594,897 

13 ,315 

66 ,332 

39 ,711 

186,820 --- 
128 ,919 -- 
659 ,007 629 ,506 

691,943 

533,645 

Unfavorable 
Variance 

$ 66,338 

2 ,000 

66,332 

39 ,71] 

186,820 
128 ,919 
29 ,501 

651,569 40 ,374 

53],254 2 ,391 



NOTE 4 - TAXE S 

Sales Taxes 

The Council administers a Sales Tax Department that is 
responsible for the collection and distribution of various 
sales and use taxes levied within the parish . The Department 
has agreements with the Council, the school board and various 
municipalities, whereby they agree to reimburse the Department 
for the cost of collections of the taxes . 

The proceeds from the one per cent sales and use tax received 
by the Council are used for construction and maintenance of 
roads, construction and maintenance of navigation channels, and 
water and flood control projects, acquiring and improving 
public works and buildings, supplementing salaries of all 
parish employees, operation of recreational facilities, 
acquisition, maintenance and repair of vehicles and machinery , 
and funding bonds. The proceeds of the tax are deposited in 
the Sales Tax Bond Sinking Debt Service Fund . 

The proceeds from the three-fourths of one per cent sales and 
use tax received by the Council are used for construction, 
acquisition , extension t improvement , operation and maintenance 
of solid waste collection and disposal facilities, sewers and 
sewerage disposal works, facilities for pollution control and 
abatement , and funding bonds issued for these purposes. The 
proceeds of the tax are deposited in the Sanitation Special 
Revenue Fund . 

The proceeds from the three-tenths of one per cent sales and 
use tax received by the Council are used within Wards i, 2, 3, 
4, 5, 7, 8, and i0 of the parish for acquiring and maintaining 
electric lights on streets, roads, alleys and public places, 
acquiring, improving and extending public works, including 
drainage and water control extensions, acquiring, constructing, 
improving and maintaining fire protection facilities, public 
safety facilities and equipment, recreational facilities, and 
public health facilities a~d equipment . The proceeds of the 
tax are deposited in the Wards 5 and 8 Special Revenue Fund and 
in the Wards i, 2, 3, 4 , 7, and i0 Special Revenue Fund . 

The proceeds from the one-half of one percent s~ies and use tax 
received by the Council are used solely for the purposes of 
paying the cost of operating and maintaining jail facilities 
and minimum security facilities of the Parish, including the 
cost of feeding, transporting and clothing prisoners and 
providing medical care . The proceeds of the tax are deposited 
in the Jail Operating and Maintenance Special Revenue Fund . 

Chain Store Tax 

Proceed s from a chain store 
deposited in the General 
operations of the Council. 

tax received by the Council are 
Fund and are used for general 
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NOTE 4 - TAXES (continued) 

Ad Valorem Taxes 

Ad valorem taxes are assessed on a calendar year basis in 
September or October of each year . The taxes become due 
and payable by December 31 and become delinquent on January 1. 
Notices regarding seizures are sent out in April with the 
seizure date being May I. The taxes are collected on behalf of 
the Council by the Sheriff and then remitted to the Council. 
Most ad valorem taxes are received by the Council in December, 
January and February . 

NOTE 5 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

The Council may deposit funds with a fiscal agent bank 
organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana, the laws of 
any other state in the union , or the laws of the United States . 
The Council may also invest in time deposits or certificates of 
deposit of state banks organized under Louisiana law and 
nations] banks having principal offices in Louisiana . 

Under state law , these deposits must be secured by federal 
deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the 
bank . The market value of the pledged securities plus the 
federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on 
deposit with the bank . These pledged securities are held in 
the name of the pledging bank in a custodial bank that is 
mutually acceptable to the parties involved . 

Under the provision of the GASB codification , accounts secured 
by pledged securities, which are not in the name of the 
governmental unit , are considered uncollatera3ized . 

is a summ ary of the cash and cash equivalents and 
federal deposit insurance and related pledged 
of December 31, 1999 : 

Cash and cash equiv 
Cash and cash equiv 
Portion insured by 
Co llateralized by s 

held by the Counc 
Balance uninsured a 

GASB codification 
Portion of deposits 
Am ount unsecured un 

NOTE 6 - INVESTMENTS 

alents - stated val 
alents - bank balan 
federal deposit ins 
ecurities in the Co 
il or third parties 
nd uncollateralized 

u e 

c e 

u r a n c e 

uncil 's name 

under 

secured under Louisiana law 
der Louisiana law 

$6,093,937 
$6,634,695 

]00 ,000 

NONE 

6,534 ,695 
6 ,534 ,695 

NONE 

Under state law , the Council may invest in certain federally 
guaranteed securities , certain bank time certificates of 
deposit and in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP), an 
organization which operates an investment pool for local 
governments . 
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NOTE 6 - INVESTMENTS (continued) 

The Council's investments at December 31, 1999 total $4,748,008 
including $55,988 of pooled investments in LAMP. 

The Council 's investments, except for LAMP , are categorized as 
either (I) insured or registered or for which the securities 
are held by the government or its agent in the government 's 
name, (2) uninsured and unregistered for which the securities 
are heJd by the broker 's or dealer 's trust department or agent 
in the government 's name or (3) uninsured and unregistered for 
which the securities are held by the broker or dealer, or by 
its trust department or agent but not in the government 's name . 

United States 
Governm ent 
Securities 

Total investments 

Cateaories 
i_  2 3_ _  

$4,692,020 
$4,692,0_ 2_

0 
~ -E=  -- 

Carrying 
Am ount 

$4,692,020 
$4,692,020 

Market 
Value 

$4,538,959 
$4,538,959 

The book value of the investments in LAMP at December 31, 1999 
is $55,988, while the market value is $56,238. 

The investment in LAM P is not categorized in the three risk 
categories above because it is a pooled investment . 

NOTE 7 - RECE IVA BLES 

The following is a summary of receivables at December 31, 1999 

Type of 
Receivables 

Taxes : 
Ad valorem 
Sales and use 

Shared revenues : 
State 

A ssessm ent s : 
Curren t 
Delinquent 
Deferred 

A ccount s 
Other governments : 

Grant s 
Total 

General 
Fund 

Special 
Revenue 
Funds 

Debt 
Service Capital Enterprise 
Funds Projects Funds 

$1,262,746 $216,499 
$ 252,658 108,286 

74 ,353 

72 ,585 65,327 

1 .160 .931 

$i,409~ 68! $I=~=478,916 

98 ,930 
41,195 

467,854 
$ 487,221 $183,525 

542 ,288 
$]~ 029,509 

All receivables are net of allowances for uncollectib le 
accounts which are immaterial. 

The deferred portion of special assessments receivables 
represents the portion of payments that will be due from 
property owners in future years. An amount equal to this is 
recorded as deferred revenue in the liability section on the 
debt service funds ' balance sheets . 
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NOTE 8 - DUE FROM/TO OTHER FUNDS 

The following is a listing of due from/to other funds by 
individual fund as of December 31

, 1999 : 

Receivable From Payable To 
Sanitation Fund Amelia & Vicinity 
Sanitation Fund Franklin & Vicinity 
Sanitation Fund Cypremort Point & Vicinity 
Sanitation Fund Ward 5 & 8 
Sanitation Fund Morgan City & Vicinity 
Gaming Receipt Certificate of Indebtedness

, Sinking 
Total Due From/To 

NOTE 9 - A DVANCE S R FUN DS 

Am ount 

$22,551 
37 ,933 
40,8]9 
45 ,176 
5 ,376 

97 ,190 

$249,045 

The following is a listing of advances to/from other funds as of 
December 3], 1999 : 

Advance To 
*Amelia & Vicinity 
*Wards 5 & 8 
Cypremort Point & Vicinity 
*Kemper Williams Park 
Road Construction & Maint . 
Sales Tax Bond Reserve 
*Wards 5 & 8 
Series L , Paving 
*Wards 5 & 8 
Gaming Receipt 

3/4% Sales Tax Bond 
Reserve 

Certificates of Indebted- 
ness Sinking 

Kemper Williams Park 
Total advances To~From 

Advance From 
Sanitation 
Sanitation 
3/4% Sales Tax Bond Sinking 
Sales Tax Bond Sinking 
Sanitation 
Sales Tax Bond Sinking 
Sales Tax Bond Sinking 
Sanitation 
Cypremort Point & Vicinity 
Capital Improvement 

Amount 

$1,165,110 
775 ,786 
241,891 
126 ,385 
68 ,572 
4 ,575 

250,000 
4 ,069 

500 ,000 
76 ,397 

3/4% Sales Tax Bond Sinking 36,740 

Reduction and Transfer 
Sanitation 

*These amounts are not to be 
Therefore , a reservation of 
receivables has been shown on 
that m ade the advances . 

2 , 
60 . 

325 
530 

repaid within the upcoming year . 
fund balance for non-current 

the balance sheets of the funds 

NOTE i0 - DUE FROM COMPONENT UNITS 

Due from component units at December 31, 1999 consist of the 
follow ing : 

Due To 
*Gaming Receipt 
Sales Tax Bond Sinking 

Sales Tax Bond Sinking 
*Cypremort Point & Vicinity 
Sales Tax Bond Sinking 
*Capital Improvement 
*Road Construction 

and Maintenance 
Amelia & V~cinity 

Due From 
Gravity Drainage #5 
Consolidated Gravity 
Drai.nage #i 

Recreation District #i 
Sewer District #10 
Hospital District #i 
Hospital District #I 
Consolidated Gravity #2 

Consolidated Water & 
Sewer District #I 

28 

Am ount 

$ 39,000 

75 
18 

216 
43 

2 64 
13 

000 
000 
891 
272 
000 
006 

108 .763 

$777,932 



NOTE 10 DUE FROM COMPONENT UN ITS 

*These amounts are not to 
Therefore , a reservation 
receivables has been shown 
that made the advances . 

NOTE ]1 - F IXED A SSETS 

(continued) 

A summary of changes in general fixed assets for the y
ear ended December 31

, 1999 follows : 

Balance 
December 31, 

1998 Addition~  De
_ _ _lletions 

Land $1,700,876 
Buildings 5,265

, 597 
Improvements other 
than buildings 3,087,764 

Equipment and 
furniture 4,403,965 

Construction in 
progress 798~_ iiZ 

$15,256,3
_~19 

$ 398,360 
155,500 $( 

Balance 
December 31, 

1999 

$ 2,099,236 
13,000) 5,408,097 

3,087 ,764 

609,841 (1,093,690) 3,920,116 

6 ,442 ,498 

$7__~60_66., 199 $ i, i0__~ 69_0 
7 ,240 ,6 15 

$~Y 755 8~  
A sun~ ary of the Enterprise Funds ' property , plant and equi

pment at December 31, 1999 follows : 

Land and intprovements 
Buildings and improvements 
Equipment 
Improvements other than buildings 
Construction in process 

Less accumulated depreciation 12,884,501 
( 7,721,880) 

$ 5 1626 20 
Depreciation and amortization expense for 1999 is approxi

mately $547
, 000 . 

NOTE 12 - LONG TERM DEBT 

The following is a summary of changes in the Gener
a]. Long-Term Debt A

ccount Group for the year ended December 31
, 1999 : 

Balance at 
Additions 
Reductions 
Balance at 

January i, 1999 

December 31, 1999 

29 

$17,710,406 
3 ,086 ,429 

(L 476,957) 
$]9,319,878 



NOTE ]2 -- LONG TERM DEBT (continued ) 

ObligL{~]ij:pns payable at December 31, 1999 are as follows 

GENERA L LONG-TERM DEBT 
Certificate of Indebtedness 
$4,200,000 of Certificates of Indebtedness, Series 
1999 were issued on November i, 1999 for construction 
of a roadway . The certificates bear interest of 
4 .793 per cent and are payable through the year 2007 . 
The certificates are being retired from the 
Certificate of Indebtedness, Series 1999, (~pine 
Road ) Fund . $3,530,000 

Public Imp rovement Sales Tax Bonds 
$1,965,000 of Public Improvement Sales Tax Bonds, 
ST-1996 were issued on April I, 1996 for the 
refunding of Sales Tax Bonds issued July I, ]992 and 
the remainder to be used to acquire and construct a 
building to be used for public health purposes . The 
bonds bear interest of 4.3 to 8.0 percent and are 
payable through the year 2016. The bonds are being 
retired from the one percent Sales Tax Bond Sinking 
Fund . 

$5,600,000 of Sales Tax Bonds were issued July i, 
1994 for the purpose of improving and repairing 
public roads and renovating and improving the P~rish 
courthouse . The bonds bear interest of 5 .375 to 8 .0 
percent and are payable 
bonds are being retired 
Tax Bond Sinking Fund . 

through the year 2012. The 
from the One Percent Sales 

] ,795 ,000 

4 ,540 ,000 

$5,500,000 of Public Improvement Sales Tax Refunding 
Bonds were issued on June I, 1993 to advance refund 
$4,620,000 of the 1987 $7,210,000 Public Improvement 
Sales Tax Refunding bonds which mature December i, 
1999 to December i, 2004 . The bonds bear interest at 
rates ranging from 2 .5% to 5.0% with payments due 
through 2004. These bonds are to be retired from the 
Three-fourths Percent Sales Tax Bond Sinking Fund . 

3 ,755 ,000 
$2,200,000 of General Obligation Bonds were issued 
November I, 1996 to improve, construct and acquire 
buildings, equipment, and books for the parish 
libraries . The bonds bear interest at rates ranging 
from 4 .9% to 8 .0% and mature March i, 2016 . 
These bonds are to be retired from the annual levy 
and collection of unlimited ad valorem taxes on all 
taxable property within the Parish 's boundaries, 
excluding the City of Morgan City . Although the 
Council is servicing the debt on these bonds, the St . 
Mary Parish Library Fund will be expending the 
proceeds and will also be transferring ad valorem 
taxes to the Council to service the debt . ],995,000 
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NOTE 12 -- LONG TERM DEBT (continued) 

REV ENUE BONDS 

$2,800,000 of Revenue Bonds Series A, 1999 were 
issued on March i, 1999 for the purpose of paying a 
portion of the costs of constructing and equipping a 
new 300 bed jail facility and to renovate, improve 
and equip the existing jail facilities. The bonds 
bear interest of 4.95% and are payable through the 
year 2014. These bonds are to be retired from the 
excess of revenues over expenditures from the Jail 
Operating Fund. $2,800,000 

$50,000 of Revenue bonds, Series B, 1999 were iE;sued 
for the purpose of paying a portion of the costs of 
constructing and equipping a new 300 bed jail 
facility . The bonds bear interest of 5% and are 
payable through the year 2029. This is a drawdown 
against the total amount of the loan of $1,196,000. 
The bonds are to be retired from the income, 
revenues, and receipts from the operation of jail 
facilities after paying the reasonable and 
necessary expenses of administering, operating , and 
maintaining the jail facilities. 50,000 

SPECIAL A SSESSMENT 
Paving Certificates 
The four following special assessment bonds are being 
retired with the proceeds of special assessment 
collections as accumulated in each of the four 
applicable debt service funds for special as~;essment 
p av ing certificates . 

It has been the policy of the Council to honor 
special assessment obligations . 

$85,843 Special Assessment 
issued December i, 1990; due 
of $8,483 through December I, 

Paving Bond Series M 
in annual installments 
2000; interest at 8% 8,483 

$263,803 Paving Certificates, Series 1995, issued 
July 1, 1995; due in annual installments of $26,380 
through July i, 2005; interest at 6.375% 158,283 

$236,4.29 Paving Certificates, Series 1999, issued 
March I0, ]999; due in annual installments of 
$23,643 through May 2009; interest at 5% 

Accrued comperisated absences 

See Note 13 Capital Lease Obligation 
Total General Long Term Debt 
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289 ,879 

236 ,429 

114 ,562 

47 .242 



NOTE 12 - LONG TERM DEBT (continued ) 

Enterprise Fund Certificates of Indebtedness 
$750,000 of Certificates of Indebtedness, Series 
]999, were issued on October i, 1999 for the pur 
pose of constructing improvements at the Parish 
landfill . The Certificates bear interest at 

Total Enterprise Certificates of Indebtedness 

750 .000 

The following is a schedule of future debt requirements including 
interest, of approximately $6,700,000 on General Obligation debt 
and $107,000 on Enterprise Fund Certificates of Indebtedness for 
debt outstanding at December 31, 1999. This schedule does not 
include accrued compensated absences at December 3], 1999: 

For Yea~: 
Ended 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005-2009 
2010-20].4 
2015 - thereafter 

General Long- 
Term Debt 
$ 2,541,568 $ 

2,638,960 
2 ,631,336 
2 ,617 ,973 
2 ,608,646 
7 ,494,203 
4 ,640 ,402 

703L242 
$25,876~ 340 $ 

Proprietary 
Debt 

8 57 ,300 

Total 
$ 2,7]],256 

2 ,812 ,404 
2 ,803,074 
2 ,787,773 
2 ,781,276 
7 ,494,203 
4 ,640 ,402 

703,252 
$26~733,640 

The Council is subject to certain affirmative and negative 
covenants pursuant to its bond and debt agreements . These 
covenants include but are not limited to : 

i 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 

Establishment and funding of certain debt service funds 
Preparation and adoption of budgets 
Preparation and independent audit of financial statements 
Restriction as to additional debt issuance 
Restriction as to investments . 
Assisting the Chitimacha Tribe of Louisiana in renewing or 
extending the Tribe 's compact with the State of Louisiand 
for conducting gaming activities on Tribal isnds. 

At December 31, 1999 $405,000 of outstanding general long-term 
debt are considered defeased . 

NOTE 13 - LEA SE OBL IGATIONS 

The Road Construction and Maintenance Fund , a special revenue 
fund , has acquired three pieces of equipment with a combined 
basis of approximately $424,000 under a capital lease. 
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NOTE 13 - LEASE OBLIGATIONS (continued ) 

The fo llow ing is a schedule by years of future m inimum lease 
payments under the capital leases together with the present 
value of the net minimum lease payments as of December 31, 
1999 : 

Year ending December 31, 2000 
Less : Am ount representing interest 
Present value of net minimum 

lease payments 

NOTE 14 - CONTR IBUTED CAP ITAI 

$ 48,664 
(_  1,422) 

$~ 7,242 

Contributed capital represents land, buildings, and equipment 
contributed to the enterprise funds from the Council's 
governmental funds and private individual donors (for the 
Kemper Williams Park Fund). The amounts contributed are being 
amortized based on the depreciation of those capital assets 
contributed . This depreciation is closed to (deducted from ) 
the contributed capital account and 
to retained earnings. A summary 
capital for the year ended December 

Net contributed capital 
Decemb er 31 , ]998 , 

Current year amortizati 
Net contributed capital 

December 31, 1999 

at 

o n 

at 
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Reduction 
& Transfer 

Fund 

$1,755,190 
(_ 233,376) 

Small 
Animal 
Control 

Fund 

an addition 
contributed 
follow s : 

Kemper 
Williams 

Park 
Fund 

$ 28,009 $2,619,092 
( 4,588) ( 76,486) 

$~ 42] $2~542, 606 



NOTE 15 - SEGMENT INFORMA T ION 

REDUCTION 
AND 

TRA N SFER 
FUND 

SMA LL 
AN IMA L 
CONTROL 
FUND 

KEMPER 
W ILL IAM S 
PARK FUND TOTAL 

Operating revenues $ 1,504,]89 $ 45,854 $ ]29,758 $ 1,679,801 
Depreciation and 

amortization expense 
Operating income 
(loss) ( 

Operating transfers in 
Net income (loss) ( 
Net increase(decrease ) 
in property , plant 
and equipment 

Net workJ.ng capital 
Total assets 3, 
Total equity (deficit )( 

NOTE 16 

437 ,022 17 ,000 92 ,5]3 546
, 535 

984,33]) 
400 ,000 

488,386) 

25 1 
872 
884 
730 

142 
854 
200 
530 

(102,707) 
67,427 

( 34,913) 

17 
13 
67 
61 

000 
976 
054 
738 

VENTURES W ITH OTHER GOV ERNMENTS 

392,753) (1,479,791) 
107,23] 5?4 ,658 
144,323) ( 667,622) 

The Council is participating in an agreement with the City of 
Franklin for the upgrade and operation of sewerage facilities 
for the City and surrounding Parish areas. The City funded 
seventy percent of the total cost of the upgrade of $1,100,000, 
and the Council funded the remaining thirty percent . The City 
government operates the system includinq budgetary and 
financial matters and the Council does not participate in the 
operation or management of the system . The Council reimburses 
the City for thirty percent of the operating costs . The 
Council, in turn, is reimbursed for 33% of its share by St . 

Mary Parish Sewer District No . 7 . The fiscal year for the 
project ends April 30, 1999. Total revenues for the year 
ended April 30, 1999, were approximately $367,000; total 
expenditures were approximately $482,000. Separate balance 
sheet amounts are not readily available at year end . 
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NOTE 16 - VENTURES WITH OTHER GOVERNMENTS(continued ) 

The cash portion of the project totaling $4,700,000 is to be 
funded approximately 70% ($3,890,000) by the Department of 
Transportation and Development and the remaining 30% ($810,000) 
is te be funded by the three local entities in equal shares . 
The City of Franklin is overseeing the three local governments 
participation in the project. The portion of the agreement 
related te providing of in-kind services has not yet been 
finalized. The fiscal year for the project ends April 30, 1999. 
Total assets at April 30, 1999 were approximately $596,000; 
total equity was approximately $596,000. Total revenues for the 
year ended April 30, 1999, were approximately $26,000; total 
expenditures were approximately $37,000. The City and DOTD are 
presently considering a second phase of the project with an 
estimated cost of $2.5 million. 

The three local entities and the Department of Transportation 
and Development are presently considering a second phase of the 
project with an estimated cost of $25 million. 

Additional financial information related to these ventures can 
be obtained from the Chief Financial Officer of the City of 
Franklin . 

NOTE 17 - PENSION PLAN AND OTHER RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

The St . Mary Parish contributes to the Parochial Employees' 
Retirement System of Louisiana (Plan A ), a cost sharing 
multiple-employer public employee retirement system 
administered by a Board of Trustees consisting of seven 
members . The System provides retirement and disability 
benefits, annual cost of living adjustments snd death benefits 
to plan members and beneficiaries . The System was established 
by the Louisiana legislature by Act 205 of ]952 and revised by 
Act 765 of 1979 . The System issues a publicly available 
financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information . This report may be 
obtained by calling the Parochial Employees ' Retirement System 
of Louisiana at (225) 928-1361. 

Plan members are requi[ed to contribute 9 .50% of their annual 
covered salary and the St . Mary Parish Council is required to 
contribute at a rate of 7 .75% of annual covered payroll . The 
Council 's actual contributions to the System for the years 
ending December 31, 1999, 1998, and 1997 were approximately 
$]90,000, $180,000 and $170,000, respectively; and were equal 
to the required contributions for each year . 

The Council is not responsible for any other significant post 
retirement benefits to its former employees. 



NOTE 18 - DEFERRED COMPENSAT ION PLAN 

Since July I, 1991, employees of the Parish have the option to 
participate in a deferred compensation plan created in 
accordance with Internal Revenue Code section 457. The maximum 
compensation that may be deferred under the plan for the 
participant 's taxable year shall not exceed the lesser of 
$7,500 or 33 1/3% of includable compensation. Additional 
deferrals are allowed in certain years prior to retirement . 

The Council is responsible for withholding and remitting 
contributions from participants to the State for inclusion in 
the plan . The State is responsible for remitting benefits to 
the participants. 

All assets of the plan, including all deferred amounts and 
income attributable to those amounts are the assets of the 
State of Louisiana and are subject to all claims of general 
creditors of the State of Louisiana . 

NOTE 19 - COMM ITM ENTS AND CONTINGENC IE S 

The Council is constructing a 300 bed law enforcement center 
and refurbishing approximately 200 beds in existing facilities. 
The total cost to construct these facilities is estimated to be 
approximately $9.4 million plus land. During 1995 the Council 
received a donation of the required land , contingent upon the 
construction of the facility . In 199B, the Council received a 
Federal grant for this project of $500,000 and in 1999 a state 
grant of $2.9 million. In addition, the Council has utilized 
approximately $2 million of its own funds for this project. The 
remaining $4 million in construction costs is funded by the 
issuance of $2.8 million in bonds and a federally secured loan 
of approximately $1.2 million. The Council has expended 
approximately $7.2 million on the project through 1999. 

The Council entered into an intergovernmental agreement with 
the Chitamacha Tribe of Louisiana for the purpose of 
constructing a road through a planned community to be located 
immediately east of the Town of Baldwin . Approximate cost of 
the road project is estimated to be $5,100,000. The cost will 
be funded by the issuance of $4,200,000 in certificates of 
indebtedness which will be repaid with an increase in gaming 
remittances to be received by the Council from the Tribe . The 
costs in excess of $4.2 million will be reimbursed to the 
Counc~l by the Tribe. Approximately $5,100,000 has been 
expended on the project through 1999. 

The Council participates in a number of federally assisted 
programs. These programs are audited in accordance with the 
Sinql~ Audit Act of 1984. Audits of prior years have not 
resulted in any significant: disallowed costs; however, grantor 
agencies may provide for further examinations. Based on prior 
experience, the Council's management believes that further 
examinations would not result in any material disallowed costs. 
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NOTE 20 SOL ID WA STE LANDF ILL CLOSURE AND PO ST CLOSURE CARE 
CO STS 

The Council provides for the co]lection and disposal of garbage 
through the operation of the Reduction and Transfer Fund , an 
enterprise fund . As part of this operation , a landfill 
composed of three areas is maintained . The operation of the 
landfill is subject to certain federal and state regulations. 
In 1989 , the Council ceased operating and closed approximately 
40 acres of the landfill which composed areas one and two . 

Since the Council accepted solid wastes at the landfill site 
after October 1993, the Council will be responsible for meeting 
state and federal requirements on the portion of the landfill 
in operation at that time. Those requirements mandate not only 
rigid landfill closure requirements but also monitoring, 
remediation and containment requirements for thirty years 
after closure . Recently management, with the assistance of 
consulting engineers, has estimated costs for closure of this 
portion of the landfill to be approximately $1,9'74,000. Costs 
for postclosure care, monitoring , and containment have been 
estimated to be approximately $3,300,000 ($110,000 per year for 
thirty years). 

GASB statement No . 18, which specifies the accounting method to 
be utilized by governments that operate landfills, became 
applicable to the Council's operations effective January I, 
1994 . GASB No . 18 requires that landfills estimate the total 
cost of closure and post closure care . Further that the 
landfill recognize a portion of these estimated closure and 
postclosure costs over the operating life of the landfill. 
These closure and postclosure costs should be recognized as a 
liability and charged as an expense of operations of the 
landfill each year based upon the amount of landfill space 
utilized in that year as compared to the total available 
landfill space . 

GASB No. 18 also requires that current costs be adjusted when 
changes in closure or post closure care plans or landfill 
operating conditions increase or decrease the estimated costs. 

As of December 31, 1999, the Council has recognized $3,750,000 
as the total estimated closure and post closure care costs 
based upon an estimated 71% utilization of available usable 
landfill space. This ].eaves $1,524,000 of estimated closure 
and post closure care costs remaining to be recognized in 
future years . 

Estimated costs for closure and post closure are based on 
estimated costs at the current time and under the current 
regulations. Future changes in inflation, technology , or 
regulating requirements could cause these estimated costs to 
increase or decrease . 
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N OTE 20 - SOL ID WA STE LANDF ILL CLO SURE AND POST CLO SURE CA RE 
COSTS (continued ) 

The Council meets the federal and state financial assurance 
requirements for operations of landfills, under the financial 
test or "self-insurance" method . The Council has not set aside 
or formally restricted any assets for closure or post closure 
care co st s . 

NOTE 2 1 -- RELATED PA RTY 

In prior years, certain advances were made to the Hospital 
Service Districts within the Parish . These advances are being 
reduced in exchange for in-kind services in the current year as 
follow s . 

The advances to Hospital Service District No . 1 are being 
reduced by medical services provided to the St . Mary Parish 
Jail inmates. The value of these services was approximately 
$28,000 in 1999. 

The advance to Hospital Service District No . 2 is being reduced 
by the rental value of space being utilized by the St . Mary 
Parish Sheriff 's and Coroner 's Office in the old hospital 
facility. The value of this rental was approximately $8,000 
during 1999. 

The Council received payments from Sewerage District No . 2 & 
No . 8 and Water and Sewer Commission No . 1 of approximately 
$209,000, $68,000 and $109,000 respectively to defray their 
port~on of bonded indebtedness during the year . 

In 1998, the Recreation District No . 1 received a non-interest 
bearing loan from the Council for $30,000 which is to be repaid 
over the course of five year's at $6,000 per year. The 
outstanding balance as of December 31, 1999 is $18,000. During 
]999, the District repaid $6,000. 

In 1997, Consolidated GravJty Drainage District No . 1 received 
a loan from the Council in the amount of $125,000 bearing no 
interest and payable in annual installments of $25,000. The 
outstanding balance as of December 31, 1999 is $75,000. During 
1999, the District repaid $25,000. 

The Council received payment 
Department of approximately 
in 1999 . 

from the St . Mary parish Sales Tax 
$10,000 for office rental payments 

38 



NOTE 22 - R ISK MA NAGEMEN T AN~) CONT INGENC IE S 

The Council is exposed to various risks of loss related to 
torts , theft or damage to assets, errors and omissions

, injuries to employees and natural disasters . In addition , the 
Council provides certain medical and health care to parish 
prisoners. The Council has purchased commercial insurance to 
protect against loss from most of these perils. However, it is 
the policy of the Council to retain the risk of loss related to 
the costs of health care benefits for prisoners . 

During the year ended December 31, 1996, the Council adopted 
the provisions of GASB Statement No . i0, which establishes 
accounting and reporting standards for risk and insurance 
related activities of governmental entities. In accordance 
with the provisions of this statement, the Council is reporting 
its risk retention activities in its General Fund, except for 
claims to be paid with future revenues, which are reported 
within the General Long-term Debt Account Group . 

There are no significant reductions in insurance coverages from 
prior years in the Council's insurance . 

Settlements in the prior three years have not exceeded 
insurance claims. 

Changes in the Council 's estimated claim s liabilities for years 
ended December 31, 1998 and 1999 were : 

Jan . I , 1998 
in estimate 

, Dec . 31, 1998 
in estimate 

, Dec . 31 , 1999 

80 ,000 
(~ 0~ ooo ) 

120 ,000 
(12~  000) 
$ -- 

Estimated claims liability at December 31, 1999 is related to 
medical care for prisoners and the related liability is 
recorded in the General Fund . 

The total expenditures reported by the Council for claims 
related to retained risk for the year December 3], 1999 totaled 
$]20,000. 



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIV IDUAL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS 



GAM ING RECE IPT FUND 

ST . MARY PAR ISH COUNC IL 
SPEC IAL REVENUE FUNDS 

December 31, 1999 

The Gaming Receipt Fund accounts for all gaming revenue 
received by the Parish . 

ROAD CONSTRUCT ION AND MA INTENANCE FUND 

The Road Construction and Maintenance Fund accounts for the 
maintenance and upkeep of the parish road system. Major 
financing is provided by the State of Louisiana Parish 
Transportation Fund and Royalty Road Funds . Use of 
transportation funds is restricted by Louisiana Revised 
Statute s . 

SAN ITAT ION FUND 

LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT BLOCK GRANT 

The Law Enforcement Block Grant fund accounts for the proceeds 
and expenditures resulting from this grant from the U .S. 
Department of Justice . 

WARD S 5 AND 8 SALE S TAX FUND 

The Wards 5 and 8 Sales Tax Fund accounts for the proceeds of 
the three -tenths of one percent sales and use tax levied within 
Wards 5 and 8 to acquire and maintain lights, public works, 
fire protection , recreational, and health facilities . 

WARDS i, 2, 3, 4, 7, AND i0 
SALES TAX FUND 

The Wards I, 2 , 3, 4, 7, and I0 Sales Tax Fund accounts for the 
proceeds of the three-tenths of one percent sales and use tax 
levied within these wards to acquire and maintain lights, 
public works, fire protection, recreational, and health 
facilities. 

KOYALT~ ROAD (TEXACO) FUND 

The Royalty Road (Texaco) Fund accounts for funds received from 
the State of Louisiana for settlement of certain parishes 
claims for royalties from prior years. This fund was closed 
during ]999. 



BOAT LANDING FUNDS 

OFF ICE OF JUSTICE PROGRAM GRANT FUND 

The office of Justice Program Grant fund is used to account for 
Federal grant funds received to operate drug courts in St

. Mary P
arish . 

16th JUDICIAL DISTRICT DRUG COURT - BYRNE FEDERAL GRANT FUND 

The 16th Judicial District Drug Court - Byrne Federal Grant 
fund is used to account for a Federal grant and matching local 
funds to conduct drug courts in St . Ma~y Parish . 

LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT BLOCK GRANT #2 

OJP JUVEN ILE DRUG COURT FUND 

JA IL OPE~ ~TING FUND 

for the proceeds and 
the U .S . Department of 
the establishment and 

The Jail Operating fund is used to account for the proceeds of 
the one--half of one percent sales and use tax levied in St

. Mary parish to be used solely for the purposeE~ of paying the 

cost of operating and maintaining jail facilities and minimum 
security facilities of the Parish . 
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ST. M ARY PARISH COUNCIL 

SPECIA L REVEN UE FUN D - GA M IN G RECEIPT FUN D 
Statement of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes m Fund Balance - Budget and Acma 

For the Year Ended December 31.1999 

REV ENUE 
Gaming 
Interest 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Currcm 
General Govem menl 
Public W orks 
M unicipal 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of rcvcnucs over 
(under) expcnditurcs 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers out 
Capital hnprovement Fund 
Ccrlificates of Indebtedness Fund 
Road CoHstruction and M aintenance Fund 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
sources over (under) expenditures and 
olher uses 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year 

Actual Btldgel 

$1,417.078 
16.521 

$1.395.711 
13.700 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$21.367 
2.821 

433.599 1.409A 11 24.188 

2 30 

661.233 

28 

(66.366) 

661.235 594.897 (66.338) 

772.364 

(650.000) 
(401.927) 
(344.520) 

(42.150) 

(650.000) 
(388,852) (13.075) 
(344,520) 

(1,396.447) (I.383.372) 

(624,083) (568,858) (55,225) 

$20,918 $76.1,13 $55,225) 

The accom l3allying notes are an integral part of these financial statem ents 

- ,18 



ST. M ARY PARISH COUNCIL 

SPECIAl, RI:VEN1J]~ I,'UNI9 - ROAD CONSTRUCIJON AND M AINTF, NANCE FUND 
Statement of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended l)ccmnbcr 31, 1999 

I~.EVEN UI( 
Pmish transportation funds 
Royally road funds 
Inlerest earn ings 
Other revenue 
M iscelhmeous 

IiXPI:;NI)ITUI~:~S 
Current 
General Govcrn/nent 
Public W orks 
tligbways/streets and roads 
Road supeP,'isor 
M unicipal-highways, strccts, roads 

Bridges 
Avoca felT?.' 
Debt sen'ice 

L"xcess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) cxpendit.ures 

O I'ItI'.'F. FINANCING SOIIRCES (USHS) 
Of, eraling transfers in 
Gaming Reeeipl Fund 

Operating transfers oUl 
Captial Improvement Fund 

Gain on sale ol'equipment 

ACaU~I 

$514,462 
2,428,661 

20.474 

6.787 

Variance 
Favorable 

I3.RdggI l.~Jnl'm,or~  

$515,000 
2,350,000 

16,755 
2,602 
6387 

($538/ 
78,661 
3,719 

(2,602) 

2,970,384 2,891,144 79,240 

648,873 
44,895 
300,000 
197.381 
109.178 
53.088 

O0 

1,715,939 
45,190 
300,000 
200,599 
116,295 
53.061 

87 

67,066 
295 

3,218 
7.117 
(27) 

2,353,428 2,431,184 77,756 

616.956 459,960 

344.520 

(811.898) (811,898) 
1.674 1.674 

Total other financing sources (uses) (465,704) (465,70.I) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and olhm 
sources over (under) expenditures and 
otheJ uses 151,252 

FuBd balance at beginning oI ?,ear 
P.csidual equity transfer m 

452,962 
486 

(5,74,1) 156,996 

452,962 
486 

$604.700 $447,218 $157,482 

The accolnpanving notes ale an integral part of filese financial statements. 
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ST. M ARY PARISH CO UNCIL 

SPECIAl. P.EVI~NUI': FUND - SANITATION FUND 
ol"P.~ventles, F.xpenditares and Changes in Fund Balance - Fhldget and Actual 

For Ihe Year Ended December 3 I. 1999 

RI~\:ENUI~ 
Taxes 
Sllles and IlSe tax 
Interest earnings 
Garbagc collection Ices 
Sale of recycled m aterial 

Illal revenues 

CXPI ~NI)I'I'UP.I'S 
CnlTen| 
Ocneral (}o'velllnlenI 
Public Safely 
Public W orks 

Total expenditures 

:'xccss (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) cxpenditnrcs 

O'I'ItI~R FINANCING SOURCI!S (USES) 
Operating transfers out 
Reduction and Transfer Fund 
Am elia & Vicinity Fund 
lq anklin & Vicinity Fund 
Baldx~in & Vicinity Fund 
W ards 5 & 8 Fnnd 
M organ City & Vicinity Fund 

Gain on sale of assets 

Actual 13ndgct 

$1,858.805 
164,066 
599,812 
3.106 

$1,897.344 
125.146 
555,000 
5.000 

Variance 
l"avol able 

I~ZJnl'a v or abl~ 

($38.539) 
38.920 
44,812 

(1.894) 

2,625,789 2,582A90 43.299 

116 
161.(/78 
862.150 

175 
194.824 
019.(/71 

59 
33.746 
56.921 

023.344 1.214.070 190.726 

602,445 1.368.420 234.025 

(4(10,000) 
(138.016) 
(232,164) 
(249.823) 
(276,497) 
(32.901) 

720 

(400.000) 
(140.878) 
(236.!)78) 
(255,003) 
(282.229) 
(33.584) 

720 

2.862 
4.81-1 

5.18C 
5.732 
683 

l'otal othcl linancing soui ces (uses) (I,328,681) (1,347.952) 19.27 

~xcess (deficiency) of rcvcnues and other 
sotu ces ovei (under) expenditures and 
Other riSeS 

nnd bahmce ~t beginning of 3cal 

20,468 

4.576.133 

$4.849.901 $4.596.(,() 

The accompanying notes are an inleg]al palq. of these financial stalcmcnts 
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ST. M ARY PARISH COUNCIL 

SPECIA L REVENUE FUND - LOCAL LAW  EN FORCEM ENT BLOCK G RANT 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fmld Balance 

For the Year Ended December 31.1999 

REVENUES 
Local Law Enforcement 
Expense reimbursement 

Tolal revenues 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Fnnd balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end ofyear 

The accompanying notes arc in integral part of these financial stalements 
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$1.050 

1.050 

1,050 

3,068 

$4.118 



ST. M ARY PARISH COUNCIL 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUN D - W ARDS 5 & 8 SALES TAX FUND 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For tim Year Ended December 3 I. 1999 

REV ENU E 
Taxes 
Sales and use taxes 
Interest 

Total revenues 

EXPEN DITURES 
Current 
Public safety 
Fire fighting 

Public works 
Street lighting 
Drainage flood control 
W ax Lake East Drainage District 

Culture & recreation 
Adm inistrative 
Bayou V ista Recreation Area 
Recreation District #3 
Recreation District #4 
W alcrworks District #2 
Other 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year 

Actual Bt~  

$211,936 
8_477 

$210,000 
8,069 

Variaucc 
Favorable 

CU_!ffavorable) 

$1.936 
408 

220.413 218.069 2.344 

22.000 

22.953 
25.000 
2.626 

500 
27.802 
40.000 
50,000 

25.000 
850 

25.000 

20.128 
25.000 
1.899 

3.000 

(2.825) 

(727) 

500 
27.802 
40,000 
50.000 

25.000 
1.700 850 

216.731 217.029 298 

3.682 1.040 2.642 

211.400 211.40( 

$215.082 $212.440 $2.642 

lhc accom panyin g notes arc an integral part of these financial statem ents 
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ST. M ARY PARISH COUNCIL 

SPECIAl. REVFNUE FUND - W ARDS 1.2.3.4. 7. & 10 SAI.ES TAX FUND 
Statemelll of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actua 

For tile Year Ended December 31. 1999 

REVENUI~ 
Taxes 
Sales and use taxes 
Intcresl 
Slate grants 

EXI~ENI)ITURES 
Current 
Gen( ral govcrnmen 
Public safely 
Fire fighting 

Public v.orks 
M unicipal - llighways. Streets. Roads 
Street lighting 
Sewer District #5 
Consolidated Drainage Dist 5 I 
Sexier District #7 
W aterworks District #5 

tleallh & W elfare 
GenerM Assistance 

Cullure & recreation 
Administralive 
Elieabclh B. I)avis Park 
W ebsterdlle Recreation Area 
Hebert-W ashinglon Park 
City of Franklin 
Town of Baldwin 
St. Joseph Recreation Area 
13aldw01 & Charenton Recreation 
Veldunville Recreation 
Tcche Theatre Grant 

Total ~xpendilures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

Actual 

$316.579 
17.554 
3.809 

Variance 
Fax~rable 

132adg~ LIjl~ rable~ 

$319.000 
15,000 
20.000 

(S2,421) 
2.554 

(16,191) 

337,942 354.000 (16,058) 

3.373 
4.800 
65.523 

500 
65.632 
6,000 
50.000 
15,998 
10.000 

4.500 1.127 
4.800 
65.523 

500 
67.800 2.168 
6.000 
50.000 
15.998 
10.000 

7.500 
52.968 

I 
10.297 
7.034 

6.87 

509.746 597.712 87.966 

(171,804) (243.7123 71.908 

OILIER FINANCING SOURCES (US15S) 
Operaling lransfers in 
General Fund 25.000 

;xcess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
sources over (under) expenditures and 
other uses (146,8043 (218.712 

Fund balance at beginning of year 464.199 

71.908 

(800 

Fund balance at end of year $316.595 $245.487 '.g71.108 

rhe accompanyttlg notes are un illtegra 
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ST. M ARY PAR1Stt CO UNCIl, 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - ROYALTY ROAD FUND 
Statement of Revenues. Expendilures and Changes in Fund Balance 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999 

REVENUE 
Interest earn ings 

Total revenues 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Fund balancc at beginning of year 
Residual equity transfer out 

F~.nId bahqnee a! end of veer 

The acconlpanying llOICS are an inlegral pnrl of these financial statenlonts 
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ST. M A RY PA RISH CO UNCIL 

SPECIAL REVEN UE FUND - BOAT LANDING PERM IT FUN D 
Statement of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Ftmd Balance - Budget and Actua 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999 

REV ENUES 
Licenses and permits 
Interest 

Total revenues 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

OTtlER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers out 
M arcel/Am elia Boat Landing Fund 
Joe C. Russo Boat Landing Ftmd 
La~wence J. M ichel Jr. Memorial Boat Landing 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and 
other sources over (under) 
cxpcndilures and olher uses 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year 

Actual ]~udge_t 

$23.688 
2.901 

26,589 

26.589 

(15,000) 
(25,000) 
05,000) 

$24,581 
2.300 

26,881 

26,88 

(15.000) 
(25.00(l) 
(15,000) 

(55,000) (55,000) 

(28,411) 

55,754 

$27.343 

Variance 
Favorable 

.(Unfavorable) 

($893) 
601 

(292) 

(292) 

(28,119) (292) 

55.753 I 

$27,634 ($291) 

The accom panying notes are an integral part of these financial statem ents 
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ST. M ARY PARISH CO UNCIL 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - GLENW ILD BOAT LANDIN G FUN D 
Statcment of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

For the Year Ended Decem ber 31
, 1999 

REVEN UE 
Interest earn ings 

Tola] revenues 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Fund balance at beginning of year 
Residual cquily transfer out 

Fund balancc at end of year 

The acconlpanying notes are all integral part oflbcse financial stalelllenls 
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$25 

25 

25 

152 

(177) 

$0 



ST. M ARY PARISH COUNCIL 

SPECIAl. REV ENU E FUN D - LAW REN CE J. M 1CIIEL JR ., M EM ORIAL BOAT LAN DING FUND 
Statem ent & Revenues, Expenditures and Chan ges in Ftmd Balance - Budget an d Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999 

REVENU ES 
Fees, charges, an d com missions 
Interest 

Total revenues 

EXPENDrI'URES 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

OTHER El NANCING SOURCES (USES) 
O perating tran sfers in 
Boat Lm~ding Perm it Fund 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues eald 
other sources over (under) 
expenditures an d other uses 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balemce at end of year 

Actual Budget 

$3,341 
404 

$3,050 
350 

V arian ce 

Favorable 
IU nfavorable) 

$291 
54 

3,745 3,400 345 

13,315 11,315 (2,000) 

(9,570) (7,915) 

15.000 15.000 

15,000 15,000 

5,430 

9.099 

7,085 

9,099 

$14,529 $16,184 

The accom panying notes are an integral part of these finan cial statements 
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ST. M ARY PARISH CO UNCIL 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUN D - JOE C. RUSSO BOAT LAN DING FUND 
Statement of Revenues, Expcnditurcs and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actua 

For lhe Year Ended December 31.1999 

REVENUES 
Fces. charges, and commissions 
lntcrcst 

Total rm enues 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating lransfers in 
Boat Landing Permit Fund 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Exccss (deflcicnc_v) of revenues and 
other sources over (under) 
cxpeudiltues and othel" uses 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year 

_Actual _Budge_ t 

$5.712 
391 

$5.335 
380 

Variance 
Favorable 

L_Un favorable) 

$377 
II 

6.103 5.715 388 

23,397 23.397 

23.397 23.397 

(17.682) 388 

25.000 25.000 

25.000 25.000 

7.706 

11.101 

7.318 388 

1.101 

$18.807 $18.41!) $388 

The accom panying notcs arc all inlcgral i)all of these financial statenleuts 



ST. M ARY PARIStl CO UNCIL 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND -BERW ICK BOAT LANDING FUND 
Statem ent of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999 

REVENUES 
Fees, charges, and comm issions 
Interest 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay, 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at cnd of year 

Actual Bu~ d el 

$19,285 
2.463 

$16.200 
1.850 

Variance 
Favorable 

f, Unfavorable) 

$3.085 
613 

21,748 18,050 3,698 

12.114 12_682 568 

12.114 12.682 568 

9.634 

47,847 

$57,48 

5.368 4.266 

47.847 

Tile acconlpanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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ST. M ARY PARISH CO UNCIL 

SPECIA L REVENUE FUN D - M ARCEL BOAT LANDING FUN D 
Statement of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Acm a 

For the Year Ended Decem ber 31.1999 

REVENUES 
Fees. charges and comm issions 
Interest 

Total r CV~l|l.lO$ 

EXPENDITURES 
Capilal outlay 

Total expendilurcs 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

OTllER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Opcratm g transfers m 
Boat Lauding Pennit Ftm d 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Exccss (deficiency) of lcvcnues and 
other sources over (under) 
expenditures and other uses 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year 

Actual Budget 

$10.076 
366 

$10.200 
600 

Variance 
Favorable 

L_UnfavorabLe3 

$124) 
(234) 

10,442 10.80(I (358) 

9.969 19.969 

9.969 19.969 

5.000 15.00(1 

15.000 

5.473 

6.345 

$21.818 

(358) 

5.831 (358) 

6.345 

$22,176 ($358) 

The accom pan', ing notes are an integral part of these financial statements 



ST. M ARY PARISH CO UNCIL 

SPECIAL REVENUE, FUND - QUINTANA BOAT LANDING FUND 
Statement of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31. 1999 

REVENUES 
Fees, charges, and commissions 
Interest 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay 

Total expendilures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues ovcr 
(under) expenditures 

Fund baJance al bet, inning of year 

Fund balan ce at end ofvear 

Actual Budg~ 

$16,948 
2,289 

$14,200 
1,800 

Variance 
Favorable 

~_Unfavorable~ 

$2.748 
489 

9.237 16,000 3,237 

19.237 

42,374 

27.450 27,450 

27,450 27.450 

(11,450) 

,12.375 

30.687 

(1) 

$61,611 $30.925 $30,686 

The accompan ying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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ST. M ARY PARISH CO UNCIl, 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - JESSIE B. HAYES M EM ORIAL BOA]" LANDING FUND 
Statem ent of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended Decem ber 31.1999 

REVENUES 
Fees. charges and commissions 
Interest earnings 

Total r e~,'enl.i es 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (trader) expenditures 

Fund balance at beginning of year 
Residnal equity transfer in 

Fund balance at end of year 

Actual _B_ nd~,~ 

$5,653 
947 

$6.000 
77:; 

Variance 
Favorable 

~Un favorablc:3 

($347) 
172 

6.600 6.775 (175) 

6.860 6.919 59 

6.860 6.919 59 

(260) 

21,542 
177 

(144) 

21.541 

$21.459 $21.397 

The accom panying notes arc integral part of these financial statements 
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1 
177 
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ST. M ARY PAR1Stl COUNCIL 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - OFFICE OF JUSTICE PROGRA M  G RA N T 
Statement of Revenues_ Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

For the Year Ended December 31.1999 

REV EN UE 
Federal Grant 
Interest earn ings 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 
Payroll and paD'oll relaled expenditures 
Accomlling 
Utilities 
Office expense 
Renlals 
Telephone 
Laboratory Fees 
Other 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiencv) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year 

Tile accolllpall3'illg notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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$66,332 
501 

66.833 

48.276 
1,500 
2.000 

1.444 
650 

2.104 
7,503 
2_855 

66.332 

501 

(499) 



ST. M ARY PARISH CO UNCIL 

SPECIAl, REVENUE FUND - 1617"t JUDICIAl, DISTRICT DRUG COURT, BYRN E FEDERAL GRANT 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

For the Year Ended December 31. 1999 

REV EN UE 
Federal Grant 
Local Grant - 16th Judicial District Attom e~ 

Total revcnnes 

EXPENDITURES 
General govcrnrnent 
Payroll and payroll related expenditures 
Laboratory Fees 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Fund balance at beginning of)'car 

Fund balance at cnd of year 

The acconlpanying notes arc all integral part of these financial statcm enls 
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$30. I (/4 
13.334 

43.438 

29.186 
10.525 

39.711 

3.727 

6.611 



ST. M ARY PARISH CO UNCIL 

SPL:CIAL REVENUE FUN D - LOCAL LAW  ENFORCEM ENT BLOCK GRAN T #2 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999 

REVENUE 
Federal Grant 
Local: 
16th Judicial District Attom e3 
St M ary Parish Sheriff 

Total rgvgnnes 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 
Payroll and pa3Toll related expenditures 
Renlals 
Lab fees 
Professional Sen'ices 
Travel 
Other 
Utilities 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (unde0 expenditures 

Fund balance at beginning of.vcar 

Fund balance at end of year 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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$95,164 

10.574 
82_070 

87.808 

132,011 
14.582 
18.431 
8.820 
3,213 
3,763 
6.000 

86,82(I 

988 

740 

$1,728 



ST. M ARY PARISH CO UNCIL 

SPEC1AL REVENUE FUND - OJP JUVENILE DRUG COURT FUND 
Statement of Revenues. Expenditnres and Changes in Fund Balance 

For the Year Ended December 31. 1999 

REVENUE 
Federal Grant 
Charges for services 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
General govern ment 
PayToll and payroll related expenditures 
Professional services 
Laborator)" Fees 
O /rice Snpplies 
O ffice Equipm ent 
Rentals 
Utililies 
M iscellaneous 

Total expenditures 

Excess (dcficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year 

$128,533 
2.073 

The accom panying notes are an integral part of these financial statem ents 
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58.724 
8.884 
8.863 
7,467 
19.654 
7.510 
10.017 

970 
6_830 

28.919 

687 

0 

$1.687 



ST. M ARY PARISH COUNCIL 

SPECIA L REVENUE FUND - JAIL OPERATING FUN D 
Statement of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Aetua 

For the Year Ended Decem ber 31. 1999 

REV ENUE 
Taxes 
Sales and use laxcs 
Interest 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Public safely 

Professional fees 
Supplies 
Repairs and m aintenance 

Feeding and maintenance of prisoners 
Courl attendance 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

Fund balance at beginnin g ofyear 

Fund balance ill end of year 

Actual B~ et 

$595,680 
1.965 

$591,700 
2.000 

Variance 
Favorable 

[_Unfavorable) 

$3.980 
(35) 

597,645 593,700 3,945 

120,859 
54,890 
11,955 
4,182 

452,971 
14.150 

115,295 
56.716 
14,580 
4,200 

423,215 
15,500 

659,007 629.506 

(61,362) 

31.031 

($30,331) 

(35.806) 

36.275 

$469 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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(5,564) 
1,826 
2,625 

18 

(29,756) 
1.350 

(25,556) 

(5,244) 

($30,800) 



ST . MA RY PAR ISH COUNC IL 
DEBT SERV ICE FUND S 
December 31, 1999 

SA LE S TA X BOND SINK ING FUND 

The Sales Tax Bond Sinking Fund accounts for the Council 's 
share of[ a one percent sales tax which is to be used first for 
the retirement of the 1994 bond issue totaling $5,600,000 and 
the ]996 bond issue totaling $1,965,000. Any amounts 
accumulated in excess of debt service requirements can be used 
by the parish for any lawful purpose . 

SALES TAX BOND RESERVE FUND 1994, 1996 

The Sales Tax Bond Reserve Fund 1994, 1996 is a reserve fund 
required by the $1,965,000 1996 bond issue indenture and the 
$5,600,000 ]994 bond issue indenture. 

THREE-FOURTHS PERCENT SALES 
TAX BOND RE SERVE FUND 

The Three-Fourths Percent 
reserve fund required by 
issue indenture . 

Sales Tax Bond Reserve Fund 
the $5,500,000 1993 refunding 

THREE-FOURTH S PERCENT SALE S TAX 
BOND S INK ING FUND 

LIBRARY GENERAl, OBLIGATION 1996 SINKING FUND 

accounts 
Fund and 

is a 
bond 

for the 
payment 

CERTIFICATES OF' INDEBTEDNESS, (1997 and 1999) SINKING FUND 

PAV ING FUNDS 

The Debt Service Paving 
construction of street 
streets within the Parish 
of the cost . 
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JA IL SINK ING FUND 

The Jail Sinking Fund accounts for 
Series A , 1999 revenue bonds and 
revenue bonds and the transfer 
expenditures from the Jail Operating 

JA IL KE SERV E FUND 

the payment of $2,800,000 
$1,196,000 Series B, 1999 
of excess revenues over 
Fund . 

The Jail Reserve Fund is a reserve fund required by the 
$2,800,000 Series A, 1999 revenue bonds and the $1,196,000 
Series B , 1999 revenue bonds . 
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ST. M ARY PARISH CO UNCIL 

DEBT SERV ICE FUND - SALES TAX BOND SIN KIN G FUN D 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actnal 

For tile Year Ended December 31, 1999 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Sales and use taxes 

Interest 

Total le'~'enlleS 

EX PENDITURES 
Geueral go'vernnlent 
Cullure and recrealion 
Public Safely 
Debt scJ~'ice 
Principal 
luterest 
Fees 

Total cxpenditures 

Exccss (deficiency) of revcnues over 
(under) expendilures 

OTttER FINANCING SOURCES fUSES) 
Operating transfer m 
Sales Tax Bond Reserve Fund 

Operating transfer out 
General Fund 

Actual Budge! 

$1,275.588 
1% 332 

$1.265,850 
17.000 

Variance 
Favorable 

g,Jn favo_tabJ ~ 

$9,738 
2,332 

1,294,920 1.282,850 12.070 

32 
6,000 
28.447 

295,000 
36(I.919 

1.545 

691.943 

602.977 

50 

(6,000) 

295,000 
360.919 
1.600 

18 

(12.000) 
(28.447) 

651,569 (40,374) 

631,281 (28.3li4) 

41.212 41,212 

(1,081.460) (1.081,460) 

Total other finaucing sources (uses) (1,040,248) (1,040,248) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
sources over (uader) expeudihlreS mid 
other uscs (437,271) (408,967) (28.304) 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund 1)almlcc at end of year 

1.117.076 

$679.805 $708.109 

The acconlpanying notes arc all integral part oflhese financial slatenlcllts 
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ST. M ARY PARISH COUNCIL 

DEBT SERVICE FUND - SALES TAX BOND RESERVE FUND 199,1, 1996 
Stalement of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes ill Fund Balance - Budgel and Actual 

For tile Year Ended December 31.1999 

REVENUES 
Interest 

Toia] revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
General goverlwnen 

Total cxpcndiha-es 

Excess (deficicnc)') ofrevennes over 
(under) cxpenditmes 

OTItER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfer otit 
Salcs Tax Bond Sinking Fund 

Tola] o|her financing sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
sore ccs over (under) expenditures and 
o[hcl" nses 

Fund balance at bcgm ning of year 

Fnnd ba]allee at end of year 

Actual _B~ c_t 

42.227 

21 

$41.212 

41.212 

(41.212) 

894 

671.784 

(41.212) 

(41.212) 

Variance 
F'avorable 

kUnfa', orablc3 

$1.015 

015 

(121) 

(121) 

894 

894 

S671.783 $895 

Tile acconlpallying notes are all integral parl of these financial slalelllelllS 



ST. M ARY PARISH COUNCIL 

DEBT SERVICE FUND - THREE-FOURTHS PER CENT SALES "FAX BOND RESERVE FUND 
Statement of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31.1999 

REVENUES 
Interest 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
General govcnnnent 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

Actual B udge_t 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$62,589 $55,691 $6,898 

62,589 55.691 6,898 

289 200 (89) 

289 200 (89~ 

62,300 55,491 6.809 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operatin g transfer out 
3/4% Sales Tax Bond Sinking Ftmd (55,691) (55,691) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
sources over (under) expenditures and 
other uses 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year 

(55,691) (55,691) 

6.609 

934.279 

$940.888 

(2oo) 

934,279 

s934.o79 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statem ents 
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ST. M ARY PARISH COUNCIL 

DEBT SERVICE FUN D - THREE-FOURTHS 1}ER CENT SALES TAX BOND SINKING FUND 
Statement of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31. 1999 

REVENUES 
Im ergovorllll~Cl]iRl rcvcnuo 
hltcrest 

Total revenl.les 

EXPENDITURES 
General governnlcn| 
Debt service 
PrinciF, al 
Illtoresl 
Fees 

Total expenditures 

Excess fdeficienc
.v) of revenues over 

(tmde~) cxpendiiures 

OTItER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfer in 
Sales ~[ ax Bond Reserve Fund 
Am elia & Vicinity Fund 
Franklin & Viemitv Fund 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
sources over (under) expenditures and 
olhcI" uses 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year 

Actual Bs~ _t 

$502.483 
t9.000 

521.483 

6 

655.000 
211.200 

378 

Variance 
Favorable 

l~Rfiavor ableJ 

$502.483 
21.09(I ($2.090) 

523.573 

20 

655,000 
211.2{}0 

I _0{}0 

866.584 867.220 

55.691 
226.215 
1(/7.192 

389.098 

(343.647) 

55.691 
246,78(I 
116.937 

43.997 75.76 

465.953 465.952 

622 

(20.565) 
(9.745) 

(3{}.310) 

$509.950 $541.713 ($31,7631 

The accom pauymg notes are an integral part of these financial statemcnls 
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ST. M ARY PARISH CO UNCIL 

DEBT SERVICE FUND - SM P LIBRARY GENERA L OBLIGATION '96 SIN KING FUND 
Stalement of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balaucc - Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31.1999 

REVENUES 
Ad Valorcm "/'axes 
lntcrest 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
General govelrl~lDeul 
Debt sen'ice 
Priucipa 
Interest 
Fees 

Total expenditures 

Excess (dcficienc)') of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

Fund balancc at beginning of year 

Fund balance, at end of year 

Actual Bk~dgct 

$249.824 7.881 .$230.000 
7.277 

Variance 
Favorable 

l~_Un favorable) 

$19.824 
604 

257.705 237.277 20.428 

25 

65,000 
19.065 

1,050 

85.140 

72.565 

284.261 

3O 

65.00(i 
119.065 

500 

[84.595 

52.682 

284.260 

(55O 

(545) 

19.883 

$356.826 $336,942 $ 19.884 

]'],C acconlpall3 Ing notes are all integral part of these I)nancia] slatenlents 



ST. M ARY PAR1Stl COUNCIL 

I)EI~T SERVICE FUND - CERTIFICATES OF INDEBTEDNESS. SINKING FUND 
Statement of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes m Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999 

REVENUES 
Interest 

Total le', enues 

EXPEN I)I'I URES 
General goverlllllen 
Debt service 
Principal 
Interest 
Fees 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) ofievenues over 
(under) expcnditurcs 

Acm al _B~ ~_I 

$12.492 

2.492 

25 

345.000 
188.620 

533.645 

(521.153) 

$13.647 

13.647 

25 

345.00(I 
185.729 

500 

531.254 

Variance 
Favorable 

LU21favorable) 

($1,155) 

(IA55) 

(2.891) 
500 

(2.391) 

(3.546) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfer m 
Gaming Receipt Fund 401.927 42-1.905 (22.978) 

Total olher financing sources (uses) 

Excess (delk icnc3) ofrevcnues and other 
SOIII'CCg O\ er (undcrl expenditures and 
other uses 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end ofvcar 

(]19226) 

236.279 236.278 

(22.978} 

(26.524) 

$143.576 ($26.523) 

"]'hc acconlpallying ilotcs arc all illlegra[ part of these financial slatenlclllS 
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ST. M ARY PARISH COUNCIL 

DEBT SERVICE FUND - PAV ING SERIES M  FUN D 
Stalemenl of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Ftmd Balance - Budgel and Aclual 

For the Year Ended December 31. 1999 

REVENUES 
Special Assessmcnts 
Interest 

Penalties & interest 

Tolal revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Debt service 
Principal 
Interest 

Total cxpenditnres 

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenucs over 
(under) expenditures 

Fund balance at beginning ofycar 

Ftmd balance at end of year 

Actual _Bud ge_t 

$3,517 
1.055 

$3,468 
1,573 
100 

Variance 
Favorable 

(_Unfavorable) 

$49 
(5]8) 
(100) 

4,572 5.141 (569) 

8,483 
1,357 

8.483 
1.357 

9,840 9.840 

(5,268) 

28.029 

$22.761 

(4,699) 

28,029 

$23,330 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these financial statement 

80 

(569) 

($569) 



ST. M A RY PA R1Sll CO UNCIL 

DEBT SERVICE FUND - CRESCENT ACRES. SERIES N 
Stalement of Revenues. Expenditures and ChatLt,es in Fund Balance - Budget and Actua 

For the Year Ended Decem ber 31. 1999 

REVEN UES 
Special Assessments 
lntercst 
Penalties & Intezcsl 

Total rcverlues 

EXPENI)Iq'URES 
General gOVelTlnlen[ 
Debt service 
Prin cipal 
Interest 
Fees 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under! cxpcndimrcs 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at e;~d ofvcar 

Actual _B_t3dget 

$65.763 
16.511 

802 

83.076 

19 

32.209 
15.299 
839 

48.366 

34.71(I 

66.780 

The accom pan3 mg notes arc fill integral part of these financial statements 
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Variance 
Favorable 

(U_n_favorable) 

$8.099 
(1,257) 

102 

6.944 

162 

7.106 



ST. M ARY PARISH CO UNCIL 

DEBT SERVICE FUND . EASY STREET & SOUTHW EST. SERIES O , 1998 
Statement of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes m Fund Balance - Budgel and Actual 

For the Year Elided Decem ber 31.1999 

REVENUES 
Special Assessments 
lnlerest 
Penalties & Interest 

Total revem leS 

EXPENDITUILES 
General governlnen[ 
Debt service 
Fees 

Total cx!c,eliditures 

Excess (deficiency') ofrevenues over 
(under) expenditures 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fnr*d balance at end of year 

Actual _B~ et 

$104,657 
16,511 

828 

$63,276 
1,744 
444 

Variance 
Favorable 

L_Unfavorable3 

$41.381 
14.767 
384 

121,996 65,464 56.532 

10.059 10,059 

0.059 

111,937 

1,044 

10,059 

55.405 

1_044 

56.532 

0 

$112.981 $56.449 $56.532 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these financial statem ents 
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ST. M ARY PARISH CO UNCIL 

I)EBI" SERVICE FUND - 1995 PAVING JUPITER GREEN ACRES #2 FUN D 
Statement of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Aetna 

For the Year Ended December 31. 1999 

REVENUES 
Special A ssessm ents 
Intercsl 
Penalties & lnteresl 

Total revenues 

EXPF.N DH'URES 
Gelaeral ~overllnlel]| 
Debt service 
Principal 
/ntcrest 
Fces 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of'revenues o'~'er 
(under I expenditures 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at clad ofxear 

Actual B u d~ '_t 

$28.463 
7.383 
3.480 

39.326 

13 

26.380 
11.773 

38,166 

1.16(} 

02.230 

$1(/3.39(I 

$23.769 
6.940 
2.702 

33.411 

25 

26.380 
11.773 

5O 

38.228 

(4,817) 

102.229 

Variance 
Favorable 

[U_nfavorabl~ ) 

$4.694 
443 
778 

5.915 

2 

62 

5.977 

$97,412 $5.978 

The accom panyin g notes are gin integral part of lhcse financial slalenlerlts 
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ST. M ARY PARISH CO UNCIL 

DEBT SERVICE FUN D - JAIL SINKING FUN I) '99 
Statement of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Ftmd Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Year F.nded December 31.1999 

REVENUES 
Interest 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 
Debt sen'ice 
Interest 
Fees 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfer in 
Jail Constru ction Fund 

Total other financing sources (t~ses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
sources over (under) expenditures and 
other uses 

Fund balance at beginning of 3car 

Fund balance at end of year 

_Actual _B~ e_t 

Vafiailce 
Favorable 

LU_n favor able} 

$605 $450 $155 

605 450 155 

13 

69,300 
304 

69.617 

(13) 

69,300 
352 48 

69.652 

(69,012) (6!),202) 

4.610 

4.610 

51,098 46,298 4.8(10 

$51,098 $46,298 $4.800 

The accon~panying notes are an integral part of these financial statcments 
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ST. M ARY PARISll COUNCIL 

DEBT SERVICE FUND - JA il, RESERVE FUND '99 
Stalemcnt of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes m Fund Balance - Budget and Actua 

For the Year Ended December 31. 1999 

REVENUES 
Interest 

Total i ~veutles 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under } expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Opcralm '=' Iransfer lU 
Jail Construction Fund 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Excess (dcl}ciency) of revenues and other 
sources over (uudcr) expenditures and 
other nscs 

Ftmd balance at bcgmlfing of year 

Fund balance at end of year 

_&ctual _Budget 

6.005 

6.005 

Variance 
Favorable 

LU!ffavorablc} 

$50 $16 

50 16 

50 16 

5.775 

5.775 

230 

23{) 

6.{}71 5.825 246 

,$6.{)7 $5.825 $246 

I hc accompanying notes are an inlcgral part of these financial slatemeuts 

l}5 



ST . MARY PAR ISH COUNC IL 
CAP ITAL PROJECTS FUND S 

December 31, 1999 

CAP ITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 

The Capital Improvement Fund accounts for ongoing capital 
projects, other than major sewerage, road, or jail construction 
related projects, funded either by federal, state, or local 
funds . 

SEWERA GE CON STRUCT ION FUNDS 

The Sewer Construction Funds account for the financing , 
acquiring , constructing , and extending sewers and sewerage 
disposal systems within the various vicinities . Transfers of 
sales tax collections from other funds are the major sources of 
funding . 

SPINE ROAD CONSTRUCTION FUN[) 

The Spine Road Construction Fund 
construction of the new road 
Chitimatcha Indian Reservation . 

JA IL CON STRUCT ION FUND 

The Jail Construction 
construction of the new 

accounts for the financing and 
linking Highway 90 and the 

Fund accounts for 
St . Mary Parish Law 
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ST. M ARY PARISIt CO UNCIL 
CAPITAl, PROJI-CTS FUND - CAP]TAI. IM I~ROVEM I:.NT FI INI) 
of P, cvenucs I(xpend ures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actua 

I,'or lhe Year lindcd Decem ber 3 I. 1999 

R1;VEN UI S 
Federal grants 
Stale [11 alltS 
1,00/ll gratlls 
hltcrcst 

:XI'I~NDI I'UI~J2S 
(.'tlrl ent : 
( }enera I goverllnlenl 
Public W orks 
1 lealth unit - '96 bond 
M mtm l,uther King Road 
Soudm 'est ]load 
(hescenl Acres 
I {as?, Street 
Penn Road 
Blex m s Propert?, 
J-llllSpOl laliOll 
Airport -Apron 
Airpola - Runway 
,~irDorI - "l'axi~ ax 

Actual Bu_~ _dgct 

07,454 
91,059 
5,000 
19.627 

07,45,1 
98.0(},1 
5.000 
20.(100 

Variance 
Favorable 

$6,945) 

(373) 

223,140 230.458 i7,3181 

42,378 42.583 

25.004 
20.476 
55.225 

25.00q 
31.00(J 
61.00(1 

205 

(1,7751 
13.M 9 

44.778 

992 
9.,123 

0.524 
5.775 

xces s (deficient?,) of revenues over 
~ m~deI I cxper*ditures (3

,259 915} (3 445.838~ 185.923 

(JI11ER H NANCING SOURCES (USES) 
( )pcla0ng Iral/sl'ers ill 
Ro[id ~'OllSIrtlc[ioll and M ailllenaltcC Ftlnd 
(lam ing Receipt l"und 
PlOcecds 00111 special assessm elll bonds 

811,898 
650.(100 
236.429 

811.898 
650.0(}(! 
236.,12~} 

~tal olhcr financing sources (uses) 1
,698.327 1.698.327 

S/KIIt3CS O\eI (tllldel 
(*ther llses (1

,561,588} (1,747,5111 185.923 

lnd halance at beginniilg of year 2
,286.963 

u~d balance :11 end of\car $725.375 $539.451 $185.924 
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ST. M ARY PARISlt COUNCIL 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - AM ELIA & VICINITY FUN D 

Slatcm cnt of Rcvcnucs. Expenditures and Changes m Ftmd Balance - Budget and Actua 
For the Year Ended December 3 I. 1999 

REVENUES: 
W ater & Sewer Connnission No 

Total revenues 

Actual Bu~g~! 

Variance 
Favorable 

U~ favorable3 

$108,763 $98,280 $10.483 

08.763 98,280 10.483 

Exccss(deficicn~')ofrcvenuc ovcr(undcr) 
expenditures 108,763 98,280 10.483 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operatinp transfers ill - Sanitation Fund 
Operatinv transfers out - 3/4% Sales Tax 
Bond Sinking Fund 

138.016 140.878 

(226,215) (246,780) 

(2.862) 

20,565 

Total othcr financing sources (uses) (88,199) (105.902) 17.7113 

Excess (dcficiency) of rcvcnucs and other 
sources over (under) expenditures and 
other uses 20.564 (7,622) 28.18( 

Fund defieil at beginning of year 

Fund deficit at end of year 

(1,054,360) (1,054,360) 

($1,033,796) ($1.061.982) $28.186 

"File accom panying notes arc all integral part of these fiuancial statcnlenls 

- 90- 



 

ST. M ARY PAR1Stl CO UNCIL 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - FRANKLIN & V1CINITY FUN[) 

Statem ent of Rcvcnucs. Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budgel and Actual 
For the Year Ended December 31. 1999 

REVENUES: 
Interest 
Sc\~'crage District #7 

Total 10VellUOs 

EXPEN DITU RES: 
Sanitation 
Franklin & Vicinit~ 

Total expcndilurcs 

Actual B_udgct_ 

$3.985 
51.330 

$3.300 
64.582 

Variance 
Favorable 

CO_,._m~  

$685 
(13.252) 

55.3t5 -67
.

882 (-12
.567) 

57.890 200.521 42.63 

57,890 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over (under) 
expenditures 1102,575) 

OTItER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfersin - Sanitation Fund 
Oimraling transfers out - 3/4% Sales Tax 
Bond Sinkin g Fund 

Total other finnnciug sources (uses) 

Excess (dcl'iciency) of revenues and other 
sources O'~ er (ullder) expenditures and 
other uses 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Ftlud balance at elld of year 

232,164 

107,192) 

124.972 

42.631 

236.978 

116.937) 

12(l.1)41 

22.397 (12.598) 

99.223 99.225 

$121.621/ $86.627 

"lhc :lcconlpafl} ing IlOteS arc an intcgal part of these J]nancial statenlenls 

4.814 

9.745 

4.931 

34.995 

(2) 

$34.993 



 

ST. M ARY PARISH COUNCIL 
CAPITAl. PROJECTS FUND - CYPREM ORT POINT & VICINITY FUND 

GqON-GAAP BASIS) 
Stalement of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Fund BaLance - Budget and Actu al 

For the Year Ended Decem ber 31, 1999 

REVENUF-S 
Interest 

Total revcnues 

EXPENDIq'URES 
Current: 
General government 
Public safety 
Capital O utlay 
Sanilation 
Sewer District #1 

M iscellaneous 

Total expenditures 

Actual Bu~g~! 

V ariance 
Favorable 

l~URkfavor abtc ) 

$56.090 $50.000 $6.090 

56.090 

86 
3.477 

25 (61) 
3.477 

3,884 5,602 422 .718 

(422) 

7.869 9.104 1.235 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over (un der) 
expenditures 48,221 40.896 7.325 

OTttER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers in 
Sanitation Fund 249.823 255,003 (5,18(I) 

Total othcr financing sources (uses) 249,823 255.003 (5.180) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
sources ovel (under) expenditures and 
other uses 298,044 295,899 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year 

645,245 1,645.244 

$],943,289 $1,941.143 $2.146 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statemcnts 
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ST. M ARS,' PARISH COUNCIL 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - M ORGAN CITY & VICINITY 

Statem ent of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended Decem ber 31_ 1999 

REVENUES 
Interest 

Total i-~\ Clll.lCS 

EXPEND]'IURES 
Sanitation 
M organ CJD & Vicinib 

Total cxl)enditures 

Actual Bud get 

$7.095 

7.095 

9.214 

9_214 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over (under) 
expcnditurcs (2.119) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers ill 
Sanitation fired 32.9(I 

Total ()tiler financing sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
SOLUCCS OVCI" I tlndCl} expenditures and 
other uses 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year 

32.90 

30.782 

51.544 

$182.326 

$5,200 

5.200 

9.214 

92 14 

(4.014) 

33584 

33.584 

29.570 

151.544 

$181.114 

]1C ;ICCO1YIp~In3 illff notes are all iulegral part Of these fillancial statClll,2nls 
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Variance 
Favorable 

kUjffavQrable) 

$1.895 

895 

(683 

(6831 

212 

$1.212 



 

ST. M ARY PARISH COUNCIL 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - W ARDS 5 & 8 FUND 

Statem ent of Revcnues. Expenditures and Changes in Fun d Balance - Budget and Actua 
For the Year Ended December 31.1999 

EX PEN DITURES 
Sanitation 
Sewer Dist. #2 
Sewer Dist. #8 

Total expenditures 

Actual Bud get 

$208.755 
67.741 

$213.083 
69.146 

Variance 
Favorable 

L~ffavorable) 

$4.328 
1.405 

276,496 282.229 5.733 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over (under) 
expenditures (276,496) (282.229) 5.733 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers in 
Sanitation fun d 276.497 282.229 (5.732) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
sources ovcJ (undcr) expenditures and 
other uses 

Fund deficil at beginning of year 

Fund deficil at end ofvcar 

282.229 (5.732) 

(1,525.788) (1.525.787) (1) 

($1,525,787) ($1.525.787) 

The accom panying notes are all integral part of these financial statelnents 
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ST, M ARY PARISH CO UNCIL 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - SPINE ROAD CONSTRUCTION F[YND 

Stmcm ent of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund/~alance - Budget and Aclua 
For the Year Ended Decem ber 31.1999 

REVENUES 
Refund of Exp. - Triba 
lntcres~ 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 
General govern ment 
Public W orks 
Capital Outlay 
Architecture & engineering fees 
M iscellaneous 

Total expenditures 

_Acttml B~  

$831,280 
93,698 

$1,028.697 
80.000 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Un_f_avorable~  

($197.417) 
13.698 

924,978 1,108,697 (183,719) 

24 

3,629,346 
275,383 
6_877 

3.730.374 
297.689 
9.508 

51 

01.028 
22,306 
2,631 

3,911,630 4,037.646 126.016 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over (under) 
expenditures (2,986,652) (2,928,949) 

Fund balaI~ce at beginlmlg of year 

Fund balance at cud of year 

2,928,944 2.928.949 

($57,708) $0 

The accom panying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 

95 

(57,703) 

(5) 

($57.708) 



 

ST. M ARY PA RISH CO UNCIL 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - JAil. CONSTRUCTION FUND 

Statement of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actua 
For the Year Ended Deccmber 31. 1999 

REVENLI.t.S 
Federal grants 
Slate grants 
Interest 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay 
Public Safety" 
Payroll and payroll rclaled expenses 
Architect & engineering fees 
Laboratory fees 
Other 
Construction 

Total expenditures 

Actual Budgct 

$2.940,000 
116.679 

$46.875 
2.940.000 
115.770 

3.056.679 3.102_645 

17.648 
129.097 
9.176 
52.750 

6.244.805 

19.142 
161.594 
20.00(I 
53.209 

6.866.835 

7.12(I. 780 

Variance 
Favorable 

CUnfavQr0ble) 

($46.875) 

909 

1.494 
32.497 
10.824 

459 
622.030 

Excess (dcficicncy) of revcnue ovcr (under) 
expenditures (3,396,797) (4.018.1351 621.338 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating lransfers out 
Jail Sto king Fund 
Jail Rcserve Fund 

Proceeds fiona long term bonds 

(120.1091 
(6.005) 

2.850.000 

(115.5001 
(5.775) 

3.996.000 

(4,609) 
(230I 

(I. 146.000) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 2.723.886 3.874.725 (1.150.839) 

Excess (deficiency) ofrevennes and other 
sources ovei (under) expenditures and 
other uses (672.911) 

Fund balance at begmnmg of year 

Ftmd balance at end of year 

1.581.965 1.581.965 

529.501) 

$909.054 $1.438.555 ($529.501) 

C accoulpan) in,,. llotes are all integral part of these J'inancial sta[clll(:nts 
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ST . MA RY PAR ISH COUNC IL 
ENTERPR ISE FUNDS 
December 31, 1999 

REDUCT ION liND TRA N SFER FUND 

The Reduction and Transfer Fund accounts for the operation of 
the parish solid waste disposal plant . All garbage and trash 
in the Morgan City-Berwick area of the parish are collected at 
the reduction station in Berwick. All garbage and trash in the 
Franklin-Baldwin area are first collected at the transfer 
station in Franklin and then transferred to the Berwick 
reduction station for disposal. 

SMALL AN IMAL CONTROL FUND 

The Small Animal Control Fund accounts for the operation of a 
small animal pound . This fund was established for the 
collection, housing, and disposal of small stray animals within 
St . Mary Parish and is funded by the parish , cities, and public 
of St . Mary Parish . 

KEMPER W ILI,IAM S PARK FUND 

The Kemper Williams Park Fund accounts for the operations of 
Kemper Williams Park, a recreational facility available for 
parish residents. The facility charges its patrons for 
admission to the park which consists of picnic grounds, 
campsites, baseball fields, a jogging trail, a driving range, 
and tennis courts. 
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CurTent agset~ 

Receivables (net of allowances 
for uncolle,'tibles) 

Advance to olher tilnds 

Properly. plant, at:d eqltipmenf 
(nel of accumulated dcprcciafion 

ST. M ARY PARISII COUNCI 

I~NTERPRISE FL'N DS 
Combining Balance Sheet 

For Lhe Yea~ I'nded December 3 I. 1999 

,IAHIJ,ITIES AND I:(INI) I~QUI'I'Y (DI~FICIT) 

,j;lbJlJt its 
Culrerbt liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued 

expenses 
Ccflifcatcs of indcbt edl~e~s payable 
Contracts pas~*blc 
Rctahlage payable 

REDUCTION 
/uNl) 

"H(;LN'SI ER 

$976.404 

143.855 
2.325 

SM AIJ~ 
ANIMAL 
CON'I ROI 

$17.861 

1.431 

22.584 19.292 

KEM PER 
W II.LIAM S 
PARK 
LENA,) 

$994.265 

183.525 
2.325 

gO.II5 

$3.884.200 $67.054 $2.841.481 $6,792.735 

$76.384 $5.316 $12.592 
135.000 
14.O39 
24.307 

,ohg-tem~ Jiabilities 
Ccllilicales ofindel~tedness payable 
Acb. ante flora other l~tnds 
l ~t~dfill closure costs 
al~d post-closure care costs 

l:lmd equily (deficil) 
Cot.lribuled capital-nel ol 
amortization 
Retained earnings (aecumulaled 
deficit) 
Reseeved for encumbrances 
Unreserved - undcslga~a~ed 

"I'olal t elaincd earnings 
(accumulaled deficit) 

Iotal fired equitY (delicil 

5.316 12.592 

86.915 

$94.292 
135.O00 
14.039 
24.307 

267.638 

615.000 
186.915 

531.814 23.421 2.542.60,3 4.097.84 

12.751) 12.750 
g6.61~ 12.137.4I)9) 

(730.530) 61.93g 2.641.97,1 I 973 182 

I'ota/lialiliti~s ad ~. dequltx $3.gg4.200 $67.054 $2.841A81 $6.792.735 

"I'he accmnpan3ing notes are an integlal part of these linancial statemenls 
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I loci/sos and purmits 

ST. M ARY I'AIUSII COF'N('II, 

EN+I ERPRISE FUNDS 
Combining Schedule of Revenues. Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings 

for the Year ]~ndcd Decetnfier 31. 1999 

Rt~I)UCTION 
AND 

"IIIANSFER 

$1,502.749 
1.440 

SM ALl. 
ANIM M + 
CON rROL 

)peralin[~ expenses 
I'ersona+ service~ 
t "Ohtl IICIUal SC~'iCCS 
Supplies 
3 [atcri~ls 
L filitic~ 
Repairs lend nmintennncc 
landfill closure cosls 
] :tluipnlent and rentals 
M isccllaneou~ 
13e[. ucLatiol~ 
]n~urane~ 

04.g79 

3.644 
2.746 
13.OO4 
2.829 

963 
1.752 
17.01~0 
1.74,1 

N~m-opcl alin[~ rc~ cnues 
Inlelt st eam ing~ 
( ]i fi~ ] )on,lions 

In~urllll~~ pl oeccds 
Sal, ol ~:qlli[+nlelll 

KIIM P]iR 
W ILI,I ~.M S 
PARK 
Lt.~ + 

129.758 

197.614 

I 1.332 
14.535 
2~.ot 2 
I0.545 

117.270 
41.547 
92.513 
10.253 

522.511 

"[TYI2'~L 

$1.678.361 
1.44O 

.679.80 

~.159.592 

23.514 367 

45.000 
16.725 
10.706 

767 

Ipur atin!! trmlsli:r s in 
t ;cr/cl t,I Fund 

400.000 

)cprc: ialion o[ fixed agscts acquired with 
collll ibutcd eapilal 

997.334 

67.42~ 

67.427 

(34.913) 

4,588 

30.325 

68,642 

;.603 
66.377 
70.502 

717 

141.199 

(251.55~ 

I07.231 

I07.231 

27.484 
66.377 
15.5o2 
17.412 
IO.706 

2~7.5 

.242 2St) 

174.658 
40(t.t)l)0 

574.658 

70.486 

(67.837 

67.205 

~04.450 



ST. M ARY PARISII COITNCII 

PROPRII~TARY FUND TYPE - ENT/'RPRISE FUNDS 
Combining Statemenl of Cash ]:lo~ s 

For the Year Ended December 3 I, ! 999 

Into case (Dcctcasc) in Cash & Cash Equix alcnts 

C~sh floxxs lrom operating ac|ivifies: 
Cash icccikcd 17o111 charges I~r services 
Cash pa~,'lltellts 1o suppliers for goods & services 
CItN}I /~/i} lllelllS I{) el)liqJ{l)'ees J'ol- services 

Cash llov, s tram mmcapital financing activities: 
hficrcxl 
Contobtltions 
Opctahng giants tecci:'ed 
Opcra0ng llallsl~'lX ill flora olhef fimds 

Cash tkm s tronl capital and related financial ac0xilies 
Fixed a',scl acquisihons 
]rlstlrallCC l'm cecds 
Pyo~ eeds 1tom sMe of assets 
Plocccds Ironl debl ismmncc 

RF.DUC'I"ION 
AN D 

TRANSI:ER 
FUN I) 

$1.490.300 
(1+11g.388 
(598.978 

$48.31) 
(21i.5cg 
(103,2>4 

KEM PI'R 
W ILI,IAM S 

I'ARK 
FUNI2 

$156.873 
(200.928) 
(196.187) 

$1.695.473 
(I.345.714) 
(g9g.459) 

23.514 3?7 

45.000 
400.000 67+x2~ 

3.603 
66.377 
95.502 
07.231 

27.484 
66.377 
40.502 
74.658 

(688.1I+5 
16.725 
10.706 

750.000 

89.266 

353.494 
717 

041.059 
17.442 
10.70b 

750.000 

330.714 ( I ~ 5 ~;1 ( 320.306 ~ (3.190 

Rcc,mcdiatu,n ,q ,,peraling loss tel ncl cash. provided b3 
opel [lllllg aCtlX ifics: 
{ )l/0IalilI): illconlc (loss) 

Adiusllllcllls to reconcile operating loss to nel cash provided 
b} opctatintl acti\ifes: 
])cpr~ciation ~lld llnlor0zation 
Dec'tease ~ increase) m accotnRs receivable 
]llCi casg" (d~'clcasc) ill accounts pa3 able and 

acci 0cd CXpCnNeN 

hc accompan\ ing re+rex ale at> intcgt a 
- t00- 

437.022 
(13.889 

334.132 

757.265 

92.513 
28.965 

546.535 
17.522 

52.5 931.09 



GENERAL SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



ST . MA RY PAR ISH COUNC IL 

GENERA L SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMA T ION 
December 31, 1999 

The general supplementary information portion of this document 
contains certain information related to the compensation paid to 
Council members. 
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ST . ~ RY PAR ISH COUNC IL 
Compensation Paid Council Members and Parish President 

For the Year Ended December 3], 1999 

The general supp lementary information portion of this document 
contains information related to the compensation paid to Council 
Members and Parish President . 

Robert Ayres 
Steve Bierhorst 
William Cefalu 
A lbert Foulcard 
Dudley J . Landry 
Harold A . Louviere 
Lionel Metz 
Paul Naquin , Jr . 
Oray Rogers, Parish President 
Calvin Savoy 
Kevin J . Voisin 
Charles A . Walters 
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$ 5,400 
9,600 
5 ,400 

10 ,168 
5,400 
5,400 
5,400 
5,400 

12 ,000 
5 ,400 
5,400 

_ _9~ 632 
$ 8_4,6o_0 



INTERNAL ACCOUNT ING CONTROL , COM PL IANCE
, 

AND FEDERA L AWARDS 



P ITTS ~; M AT'rI~ 
a corporation of 

certified public accountants 

REPORT ON COMPL IANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANC IAL 
REPORT ING BA SED ON AN AUDIT OF F INANC IAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 

Chairman 
St . Mary 
Franklin 

IN ACCORDANCE W ITH GOVERNMENT AUDIT ING STANDARDS 

and Members of the Council 
Parish 

, Louisiana 

We have audited the primary government financial statements and 
the combining and individual fund and account group financial 
statements of the St . Mary Parish Council as of and for the year 
ended December 3], ]999, and have issued our report thereon dated 
April 2], 2000. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditinq 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States . 

Co~ liance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the St . 
Mary Parish Council 's financial statements are free of material 
m isstatement , we performed tests of its comp liance w ith certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect 
on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not 
an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion . The results of our tests disclosed instances of 
noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditinq Standards which are described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 99-], 99-2, 
and 99-3 . 

Internal Control Over Financial Reoortina 

In planning and performing our audit , we considered the St . Mary 
Parish Council's internal control over financial reporting in 
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to 
provide assurance on the internal control over financial 
reporting . However, we noted certain matters involving the 
internal control over financial reporting and its operation that 
we consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions 
involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant 
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deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control 
over financial reporting that, in our judgement, could adversely 
affect the St . Mary Parish Council's ability to record, process, 
summarize and report financial data consistent with the 
assertions of management in the general purpose financial 
statements . Reportable conditions are described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 
99-4 and 99-5 . 

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or 
operation of one or more of the internal control components does 
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements 
in amounts that would be material in relation to the primary 
government financial statements being audited may occur and not 
be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal 
course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration 
of the internal control over financial reporting would not 
necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that 
might be reportable conditions and , accordingly , would not 
necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also 
considered to be material weaknesses . However, of the reportable 
conditions described above , we consider items 99-4 and 99-5 to be 
material weaknesses . 

This report is intended for the information of management , the 
finance committee of the St. Mary Parish Council, federal 
awarding agencies, and the Legislative Auditor of the State of 
Louisiana . However, this report is a matter of public record and 
its distribution is not limited. 

April 21, 2000 

CERTIF IED PUBL IC A CCOUNTANTS 
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P ITTS ~  M ATTE 
a corporation of 

certified public accountants 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR 
PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE W ITH 

OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

Chairman 
St . M ary 
Franklin , 

and Members of the Council 
Parish 
Louisiana 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of the St . Mary Parish Council 
with the types of compliance requirements described in the U .S . 
Office of Manaaement and Budqet (OMB ) Circular A-133 Compliance 
Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended December 31, 1999 . Tile St . Mary 
Parish Council's major federal programs are identified Jn the 
summary of auditor 's results section of the accompanyJng schedule 
of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the 
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants 
applicable to each of its major" federal programs is the 
responsibility of the St . Mary Parish Council 's msnagement . Our 
respon sib ility js to express ~n op inion on the St . Mary Parish 
Council 's complJance based on our audit . 

We cond 
accepte 
financi 
issued 
Circula 

ucted our audit of compliance in accordance with gener 
d auditing standards; the standards applicable 
al audits contained in Government Auditin~ Standa 

ally 
to 

rds , 
OM B 
and 

by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
r A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments 

Non-Profit Organizations . Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncomp]iance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. 
A~ audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about St . 
Mary Parish Council's compliance with those requirements and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in 
the circumstances . We be]ieve that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion . Our audit does not provide a 
legal determination on the St . Mary Parish Council's compliance 
with those requirements. 
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In our opinion, the St . Mary Parish Council complied, in all 
material respects , with the requirements referred to above that 
are applicable to its major federal programs for the year ended 
Decemb er 31 , 1999 . 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of St . Mary Parish Council is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grants applicable to federal programs . In planning and 
performing our audit, we considered the St. Mary Parish Council 's 
internal control over compliance with requirements that could 
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in 
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on 
the internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB 
Circular A-133. 

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would 
not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that 
might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition 
in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal 
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the 
risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in 
relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and 
not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal 
course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no 
matters involving the internal control over compliance and its 
operation that we consider to be material weaknesses . 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

We have audited the primary government financial statements and 
the combining and individual fund and account group financial 
statements of St . Mary Parish Council as of and for the year 
ended December 31, 1999, and have issued our report thereon 
dated April 2], 2000 . Our audit was performed for the purpose of 
forming an opinion on the primary government financial statements 
taken as a whole . The accompanying schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis 
as required by OMB Circular A-]33 and is not a required part of 
the primary government financial statements of St . Mary Parish 
Council. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of primary government financial 
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the primary government financial 
statements taken as a whole . 
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April 21, 2000 
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ST . MA RY PARISH COUNC IL 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS, QUESTIONED COSTS AND FEDERAL AWARDS 

For the Year" Ended December 31, 1999 

A . SUMM ARY OF AUD IT RESULT S 

i. The auditor 's report expresses an unqualified opinion on 
the primary government financial statements of the St . 
Mary Parish Council . 

Auditinq Standards . These condition~: are reported as 
material weakness . 

3. Three instances of noncompliance material to the primary 
government financial statements of the St . Mary Parish 
Council were disclosed during the audit . 

4 No reportable 
major federal 
on Compliance 
Program and 

conditions relating to the audit of the 
award programs are reported in the Report 
with Requirements Applicable to Each Major 

Accordance with 

5 . The auditors ' 
award program s 
an unqualified 

Internal Control Over Compliance in 
OMB Circular A-133 . 

report on compliance for the major federal 
for the St . Mary Parish Council expresses 
opinion . 

6. No audit findings relative to the major federal award 
programs for the St:. Mary Parish Council are reported in 
Part C of this Schedule . 

7. The programs tested as major programs include 

Airport Improvement Program Grant (CFDA No . 20.106 
Surveys, Studies, Investigations, and Special 
Purpose Grants (CFDA No . 66.606) 

Cor~ unity Development Block Grant (CFDA No . 14.219 
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant (CFDA No . 16.592 

8. The threshold for distinguishing types A and B programs 
was $300,000. 

9 . St . Mary Parish Council was not determined to be a low 
risk auditee . 
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B . F IND ING S F INANC IA L STA TEMENT AUD IT 

N ON COM PL IA N CE 

ITEM NO . 99--1 Budoet Monitorina 

Auditors ' Comments 

Condition : During the course of the audit for 
December 31, 1999, it was noted that several 
individual funds needed budget amendments that 

Criteria : State and local 
when certain conditions 
explained in detail below . 

the year ended 
of the Parish 's 
were not made 

law require that budgets be amended 
exist . These conditions are 

Effect : Failure to amend budgets to recognize anticipated 
shortfalls or surpluses in funds prevents the governmental 
body from effectively curtailing or expanding projects and/or 
services in accordance with actual available resources. 

Cause : Although the cause of the above condition was not fully 
determined during the audit , two reasons appear to have a 
significant effect . First , in accordance with the local 
charter, a significant time lag exists between the proposal 
of budget amendments and the enactment of those amendments . 
As a result , the final proposed budget amendments in a fiscal 
year are currently based on information which is several 
months old . Secondly, although the Parish makes accruals for 
payables a nd receivab]es at year end, adjustments are not 
made in the interim period . When significant differences 
exist between payab les and receivab les from year to year , the 
amount of funds that appear to be available or costs that 
appear to have been incurred can be distorted . Failure to 
recognize the effect of these differences can lead to 
variances between budgeted and actual activity . 

Recomm endation : The Council should develop an ongoing b 
monitoring program . The significance of accruals for 
revenues and expenditures should be considered periodi 
during the year. Consideration should be given to a 
expedient method to amend the budget or to developing 
current information between submission of a b 
amendment and its final adoption . 

udget 
major 
cally 
m o r e 

m o r e 

udget 

A more detailed description of the conditions and criteria is 
presented below : 
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Auditors ' Detailed Comments 

Louisiana statutes require that the chief executive or 
administrative officer shall advise the governing authority in 

writing when revenues collected plus projected revenue 
collections for the remainder of the period , within a fund , are 
failing to meet estimated annual budgeted revenues by at least 
five percent or when actual expenditures plus projected 
expenditures for the remainder of the year within a fund exceed 
budgeted expenditures by at least: five percent . Upon receiving 
notification, the governing authority is required to amend the 
budget . 

Notification was not made and the following budgets were not 
amended although actual revenues failed to come within five 
percent of budgeted revenues: 

Fund 

Fund 

Debt Service Fund 

Actual Budgeted 
Amount Amount Variance Percent 

55,3]5 $ 67,882 $ 12,567 18.5% 

924 ,978 1,108 ,697 183,719 16 .6% 

Certificate of Indebted- 
ness , Series 1997 and 

1999 12,492 13 ,647 1,155 8 .5% 

Notification was not made 
amended although actual 
expenditures by five percent 

Fund 

Special Revenue Funds 
Gaming Receipt Fund 
Lawrence J . Michel 

Memorial Boat Landing 
Fund 

and the follow ing budgets were not 
expenditures exceeded budgeted 

o r m o r e : 

Actual 
Amount 

Budgeteci 
Amount Variance Percent 

$661,235 $594,897 $66,338 

13,315 2 ,000 17.7% 

Debt Service Fund 
Sales Tax Bond Sinking 

Fund 691,943 651,569 40,374 6.2% 
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Failure to recognize and adjust for shortfalls in anticipated 
revenues or excesses over anticipated expenditures can lead to 
budget deficiencies. Budgets should be adjusted whenever actual 
revenues and future anticipated revenues fall short of budgeted 
revenues by five percent or more and when actual expenditures and 
anticipated expenditures exceed budgeted expenditures by five 
percent or more . 

According to the budget ordinance, the Administration shall 
notify the Council within thirty days of an actual account 
fluctuation from budget of five percent, up or down, in revenues 
or expenditures . The follewing actual revenues exceeded budgeted 
revenues by five percent or more at year end . 

Funds 
Actual Budgeted 
Amount Amount Variance Percent 

Special Revenue Funds 
Berwick Boat Landing Fund $ 21,748 $ 18,050 
Quintana Boat Landing Fund 19,237 16,000 

$ 3,698 
3,237 

20 .5% 
20 .2% 

Debt Service Funds 
Three Fourths Per Cent 

SaleE~ Tax Bond 
Reserve Fund 62,589 55,691 6,898 12 .4% 

Crescent Acres , Series N 
Easy Street & Southwest , 

Series O , 1998 
1995 Pav ing Jupiter Green 
Acres #2 Fund 

Capital Projects Funds 
Amelia & Vicinity Fund 
Cypremort Point & 

Vicinity Fund 
Morgan City & vicinity 

Fund 

257,705 
83,076 

121,996 

39,326 

237 ,277 
76,132 

20 ,428 
6,944 

65 ,464 56 ,532 

33,411 5 ,915 

108,763 98 ,280 

56,090 50 ,000 

7,095 5 ,200 

8 .6% 
9 .1% 

86 .36% 

17 .7% 

10 ,483 10 .7% 

6,090 

1 ,895 

12 .2% 

36 .4% 



The follow ing actual expenditures were less than budgeted 
expenditures by five percent or more at year end . 

Funds 

Special Revenue Funds 
Sanitation Fund 
Wards 1,2,3,4,7 & 

i0 Sales Tax Fund 
Quintana Boat Landing 

Fund 
Capital Projects Funds 

Capital Improvement 
Fund 

Franklin & Vicinity 
Fund 

Actual 
Am ount 

Budgeted 
Am ount Variance Percent 

$1,023,344 $1,214,070 $190,726 

509,746 597,712 87,966 

- -  27,450 27,450 

15 .7% 

14 .7% 

100% 

3,483,055 3,676,296 193,241 5 .3% 

157,890 200 ,521 42 ,631 21 .3% 
Cypremort Point & 

Vicinity Fund 7,869 
Jail Construction Fund 6,453,476 

9 ,104 1,235 
7,120,780 667,304 

13.6% 
9 .4% 

Failure to apprise the Council of excess funds available due to 
excess revenues or under expenditures can result in the omission 
of additional projects or services which the government could 
have provided . 

M anagem ent 's Respon se 

During the year, all funds are reviewed and monitored monthly , 
proposed adjustments are made during budget amendments in order 
to achieve compliance with the five (5%) percent deviation 
requirement and to provide a better estimate of actual available 
resources in each fund . A ll funds are amended accordingly w ith 
the best information available . A significant time lag exists 
between budget amendment introduction and its final adoption 
which requires revenues and expenditures in various funds to be 
projected or estimated up to two months ahead. In the future, 
management will use more resources, such as additional personnel 
and survey materials, to obtain the most current information in 
order to provide an amended budget for each fund that will be 
within the required five (5%) percent deviation. In addition, 
during budget amendments, the effect of accruals will be 
considered when analyzing financial information for budget 
purposes. If it is determined that accrual adjustments are 
needed, then they will also be included in budget amendments. 
The following is a summary of explanations to the deviations of 
the various funds listed in Item No . 99-1 of the 1999 audit : 

Capital Proiects Funds Debt Service Fund 

The deviation in the Franklin & Vicinity Fund resulted from an 
overestimation of reimbursement from Sewerage District No . 7 due 
to an inadvertent delay in receiving the City of Franklin 's 
statement of Sewer plant costs at year end . The overestimation 
of revenues in the Spine Road Construction Fund was due to an 
unexpected delay in the completion of the spine road . The 
interest actually received in the Debt Service Fund was slightly 
less than budgeted due to an overestimation of the interest rate . 
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Expend itures 
(Expenditures exceeded budgeted expenditures by 5%) 

SPecial Revenue Funds Debt Service Fund 

The Gaming Receipt Fund incurred expenditures greater than 
budgeted due to an underestimation of the amount of expense to be 
accrued in 1999 for a February, 2000 transaction, which reflects 
the sha~e of gaming funds paid to the Sheriff and the five 
municipalities. An unexpected expense to dredge the Michel Boat 
Landing was incurred at year end in the Michel Boat Landing Fund 
which caused actual expenditures to exceed budgeted expenditures. 
The Sales Tax Bond Sinking Fund reflected a slight deviation over 
five (5%) percent as a result of an underestimation of medical 
expenses for parish prisoners who receive medical services at 
Franklin Foundation Hospital, which expense is written off of the 
balance of a loan to the Hospital. 

Revenue s 

(Revenues exceeded budgeted revenues by 5%) 
SDecial Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds. Capital Proiects Funds 

These deviations of 5% occurred due to Boat Launch revenues 
increasing more than anticipated at year end . More interest was 
earned in our Debt Service Funds and Capital Project Funds than 
anticipated . In addition , Ad valorem Tax a~; per the Library 
M illage were more than estimated at year end . Payments on 
Special Paving Assessments were received but not anticipated at 
year end, as several assessments were paid in full. The 
administration is working hard each year to eliminate as many 
budget deviations as possible and will continue to do so in the 
future . 

Expenditures 
(Expenditures were less than budgeted by 5%) 

Actual expenditures for Special Revenue Funds were less than 
anticipated by year end. In the Capital Project Funds, several 
projects were scheduled to be completed by year end. However due 
to circumstances beyond our control, the projects were delayed. 
Prior to final adoption of a budget amendment, meetings will be 
conducted with the Department heads and financial department 
staff in order to obtain the most current information and 
incorporate it into the amendment prior to its final adoption . 

ITEM NO . 99-2 FUND DEF IC IT S 

Auditors ' Comments 

Condition : During the course 
certain funds had deficit 
retained earnings. 

of the audit it was noted that 
fund balances or deficits in 

Criteria : State statute prohibits expending amounts in excess 
of fund balance, revenues, and other financing sources. 

Effect : Violation of state statute . 
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Cause: For the Special Revenue Fund and Capital Projects 
Funds, the Council expended amounts in excess of fund 
balance, revenues, and other financing sources. For the 
Enterprise Fund, the deficit resulted from adjustments 
necessary to comply with GASB 18, Accounting for Municipal 
Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs. 

Recommendation : A detailed study should be made to develop 
additional or alternative funding sources, to consider 
reallocating existing funding, or to combine certain existing 
funds . 

The following individual funds were in violation of state 
statutes and had deficit fund balances (retained earnings) at 
year end : 

Fund 

SPecial Revenue Fund 
Jail Operating Fund 

Capita] Projects Funds 
Amelia and vicinity Fund 
Wards 5 & 8 Fund 
Spine Road Construction Fund 

Enterprise Fund 
Reduction & Transfer Fund 

(deficit retained earnings) 

Manaqement 's Response 

Special RevenUe Fund 

Deficit Amount 

$( 30,331) 

(1,033,796) 
(1,525,787) 
( 57,708) 

(2,262,344) 

The Jail Operating Fund deficit is due to an u~expected increase 
in the cost of housing juveniles at year end than was budgeted. 
This deficit will be covered with Sales Tax Revenues in 2000. 

Capital Proiect Funds 

The Spine Road Construction 
deficit by the Chitimacha 
Endeavor Agreement . 

Enterprise Fund 

Fund will be reimbursed for this 
Tribe in 2000 as per Cooperative 

This deficit is incurred as a result of the accrual of closure 
cost and post closure care cost of the parish owned landfill. 
The tipping fee has been increased at the landfill to be 
dedicated to closure and post closure costs, which will help 
reduce this deficit . In addition, funds from the Sanitation Fund 
will be used to help pay the cost of closure and post closure 
care when the landfill (Area 3) is closed in approximately 4 
years . 

- 114- 



ITEM 99 ~3 BUDGETS 

Local Law Enforcement Block Grant #i 
Office of Justice Program Grant 
16th Judicial District Byrne Federal Grant 
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant #2 
OJP Juvenile Drug Court Grant 

Criteria : State law requires that annual budgets be adopted f
or each special revenue fund

. 

Effect : Failure to adopt an annual budget deprives m
anagement of a tool to m

onitor whether or not revenues or expenditures ar
e meeting or exceeding anticipated result

s in a particular fund 
on an annual basis. 

Cause : The reason that annual budgets were not adopted for th
ese special revenue funds is th

at these funds account for 
activities of different Federal grants whose grant 

periods do n
ot coincide with the Council 's fiscal year

. The Council uses th
e grant period budgets to monitor results of operations for 

these funds . 

Recommendation : The Council should adopt annual budget
s for all speci

al revenue funds as required by state law
. 

em ent ' 
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ITEM NO . 99"-4 FUND BALANCE 

Auditors ' Comments 

Condition : During the course of auditing the Parish 's fund 
balances, certain differences were noted in those balances as 
compared to prior year audited fund balances . 

Criteria : Generally accepted accounting principles state that 
only corrections of material errors from prior periods should 
be made to fund balances or retained earnings balances. 

Effect : User 's confidence in 
statements is undermined and 
not in accordance with 
principles. 

the reliability of the financial 
interim financial statements are 
generally accepted accounting 

Cause: Making adjustments to beginning fund balance/retained 
earnings for insignificant amounts . 

Recommendation: No adjustments should be made to fund 
balance/retained earnings without written approval. 

M anagement 's ResDonse 

In the future, adjustments to fund balance/retained earnings will 
not be made without approval. This situation occurred as a 
result of adjusting the fund balance when expenses incurred in a 
previous year are paid in the following year . 
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ITEM NO . 99-5 
EXPEND ITURES 

-  FA ILURE TO B ILL FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF SEWER PLANT 

Aud itor 's Comments 

Condition : The Council participates in an agreement with the 
City of Franklin to operate a sewerage facility . The Council 
reimburses the City for thirty percent of the City 's 
operating costs. In turn, the Council is reimbursed 33% of 
its share by St . Mary Parish Sewer District No . 7. The 
Council should bill the Sewer District each time a bill is 
received from the City . During the audit, it was noted that 
the Council failed to bill the Sewer District for all the 
District 's share of the Sewer plant 's operating expenditures. 
The amount of under billing to the District was $21,561. 

Criteria : 
due the 

Administration should collect all revenues that are 
Council. 

Effect : The Council failed to collect significant revenues that 
were due . 

Cause : This problem is due to lack of a system to properly 
insure billing and tracking of all revenues due . 

Reconunendation : A system should be developed, implemented, and 
monitored to insure that all revenues are billed and 
co] lected . 

anaaem ent ' s ResD on 

A program has 
to insure that 
collected from 
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C . FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS 
A UD IT 

No matters to be reported . 
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D . SCHEDULE OF EXPEND ITURE S OF FEDERA L AWARDS 

FEDERA L 
PA SS-THROUGH 

PROGRA 

GRANTOR/ 
GRANTOR NAME/ 

U .S . Department of TransDortation 
Federal Aviation Administration 

CFDA 
NUM BER 

Airport Improvement Program 20.106 $ 107,454 $ 107,454 

Total U .S. Department 
of Transportation 

U .S. Environmental Protection 
AqencZ 

Office of Administration 

107,454 107 ,454 

Surveys, Studies, Investi- 
gations, and Special 
Purpose Grants (Atcha- 
falaya Basin Education 
Research Center) 66.606 _88,340 88,340 

Total U .S . Enviro- 
mental Protection 

Agency 

U .S . Department of Housino and 
Urban DeveloPment 

Community Planning and Devel- 
opment 
Passed through the Sate of 

Louisiana 's Division of 
Administration 

_
88,340 88 ,340 

Co~ nunity Development Block 
Grants/(Small Cities 

Program ) 14 .219 67,936 67,936 

Passed through Louisiana 
Department of Social Services 
Office of Community Services 

Emergency Shelter Grants 14.231 
I  2 ,741 2 ,741 

Total U .S . Department of! 
Housing & Urban Development $__ 70,677 $ 70,677 



 

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ 
PASS-THROUG}{ GRANTOR NAME/ 

PROGRAM T ITLE 
CFDA 

NUMBER REVENUE S EXPEN SES 

Federal Emerqency Manaqement A_ _Aqg~ c__y 
Passed through the Louisiana 

Department of Military Affairs 
Office of Emergency Preparedness 

Civil Defense-State & Local 
Emergency Management 
Assistance 83.503 $__  13,612 $ 13,612 

Total Federal Emergency 
Management Agency __  13,612 13,612 

U .S . Dc~Rt . of Justice 
Bureau of Justice Assistance 

Local Law Enforcement 
Block Grant 16 .592 95 ,164 95 ,164 

Drug Court Discretionary 
G rant 16 .585 194 ,865 194 ,865 

Passed through the Louisiana 
ConJnission on Law Enforce- 

nLent and Administration of 
Criminal Justice 

Byrne Formula Grant 

Total U .S~ Dept . of Justice 

U .S . DeDartment o f AGricu lture 
Rural Utilities Service 

16 .579 30 .104 30 ,104 

Community Facilities Loans 
and Grants 10 .766 

Total U .S.Dept . of 
Agriculture 

Total Federal Awards 

320 ,133 320 ,133 

50 .000 50 ,000 

50 ,000 

$ 950,216 

50 ,000 

$ 650,216 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule 
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ST . MARY PAR ISH COUNC IL 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the Year Ended December 3], 1999 

Note i - S]GN IF ICANT ACCOUNTING POL ICIES 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is 
a summary of the activity of the Council's federal award 
programs presented on the accrual basis of accounting in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
except for Emergency Shelter Grant , which is presented on the 
cash basis as detailed in Note 2. 

Note 2 - EMERG 

The Emergency Shelter Grant is presented in the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards on the cash basis. A 
reconciliation to amounts in the financial statements is as 
follows : 

Federal grant revenue per financial statements $ 6,301 

Less: ~ ounts received from grantor in January, 2000 (3,560) 

Federal grant revenue per schedule of federal awards 
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SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PR IOR YEAR FIND INGS AND RELATED CORRECTIVE 
ACT ION PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT OF ST . MARY PAR ISH COUNCIL 

Item s of Noncompliance 

Item No . 98--1 Budget Monitoring 

condition : During the course of the audit for the year ended 
December 31, 1998, it was noted that several of the Parish 's 
individual funds needed budget amendments that were not made . 

Corrective Action : 

We have attempted to monitor our budgets more closely , and as a 
result we have had less budget deviation in the '99 year . 

Item No . 98--2 Fund Deficits 

Condition : During 
certain funds had 

Corrective Action : 

the course of the audit, it was noted that 
deficit fund balances. 

Special Revenue Fund - The deficit was eliminated by the FTC Drug 
Court Fee Fund in 1999 . 

Capital Project Fund - These funds still have deficits and will 
be resolved in several years. Through agreements with local 
sewerage districts, additional revenues have been collected in 
1997-1999 in order to meet annual expenditures of these sewer 
funds, thereby preventing the deficits from increasing as in 
previous years . Sewer bonds in these funds will be paid off in 
December, 2004. It is projected that revenues received from 
Sales Taxes after that date will be used to reduce and cancel 
these deficits. 

Enterprise Fund - This deficit is incurred by the accrual of the 
closure, cost and post closure cost for the parish owned landfill. 
The Parish Administration has increased tipping fees to help 
reduce this deficit . The fee was increased starting in October 
of 1999. The landfill is currently scheduled to close in 
approximately four years. We anticipate the increase in tipping 
fees to generate approximately $650,000. The remaining 
approximate $1.3 million will be transferred from the Sanitation 
Fund . 

Item No . 98-3 Budgets 

Condition : During the course of the audit, it was noted that the 
Council did not adopt annual budget for certain of its Special 
Revenue Funds . 

Corrective Action 

Nothing was done to correct this in 1999; however, budgets will 
be adopted in 2000. 
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HENRY "BO" LAGRANGE 
CHIEF ADMINIST~ ]~V~ OF FI(;[~R 

S Jlo ~[A RY PA R ][SH G O V ERN N LN  F 

W ILLIA M  A . "B ILL" C E FA LU , PRESIDENT 
FIFTH FLOO R - CO URTHOUSE 

FI{AN KIA N , LO U ISIA N A 70538-6198 

DIREC]OR OF FINANCE 
SUE CARTER 

DIRECIOR OF PERSONNEL 
]AMMY CHARPFNTIE R 

Dr. Daniel G. Kyle 
O ffice of Legislative A uditor 
State of Louisiana 
Post O ffice Box 94397 
Baton Rouge, LA 70804-9397 

DIR[CTOR OF pLANNING 
CAROL d. VINNING 

Dear Dr. Kyle: 

DIRECI OR OF 
ECONOMIC DEVIL OPME t4 

GLEN R COLLINS 

fRANKLIN ARE& 
(337~ 828-4100 

MORGAN OIlY AREA 
1504) 385 2520 

OEAN~R~] I ~ AF{~A 
1337~ 276-3869 

FAX (337) 898 4092 

Om CE HOURS 
8~ A M TO I2~ P M 
lOOp M TO 430P M 

The St. M ary Parish Governm ent respectfully subm its the following corrective 
action plan for the year ended Decem ber 31, 1999. 

O ur audito rs Pitts ~ M atte, CPA's ,P. O . Box 2363, M organ City, LA 
70381, was contracted for th e audit period ending December 31, 1999. The 
findings from the Decem ber 31, 1999, schedule of findings and questioned 
costs are discussed below: 

SUM M A R Y O F THIS YEA R FINDIN GS A N D RELA TED 
CORRECTIVE A CTIO N  PLA N  PREPA RED BY St. M ary Parish 

Governm ent 

ITEM  N O . 99-01 BUD GET M O NITO RIN G 

Condition: During the course of audit for the year ended 
Decem ber 31, 1999, it was noted that several of the Parish's 
individual funds needed budget am endm ents that were not m ade. 
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CO RRECTIVE ACTIO N : W e present to the council each m onth 
a financial report that includes deviations on revenues and 
expenditures, and w e present tw o budget am endm ents during the 

yea r in addition to adjusting the budgets within the functions 
m onthly. Prior to final adoption of a budget amendment, 
meetings w ill be conducted with the Department hea ds and 
financial depa rtment staff in order to obtain the m ost current 
information and incorpo rate it int o the am endment prior to its 
fina l adoption. 

Condition: During the course of the audit it was noted that 
certain funds had deficit fu nd balances or deficits in reta ined 
earnings. 

Corrective Act ion: Your Spe cial Revenue Fund will be  ta ken care 
of in the up com ing yea r w ith Sales Tax Revenue or from a 
transfer from General Fund. The Capital Project Funds 
co ncerning the Sewer Districts, w ill not be  resolved until the 
bonds are pa id in 2004, then the Sa les Tax revenue will start to 
reduce this deficit and if it does not cancel the entire deficit, then 
the administration w ill propose a transfer of funds from the Sani- 
tation Fund to cover the remainder of the debt. The Spine Road 
w ill be reim bursed in 2000 from the Chitimacha  Tribe to cover 
this fu nd deficit. 

The Enterprise Fund deficit is incurred as a result of the accrual of 
closure cost and post closure ca re cost of the pariish ow ned 
landfill. Th e tipping fee has be en increa sed at the landfill to be  
dedicated to closure and po st closure costs, which w ill help 
reduce this deficit. In addition, funds from the Sa nitation Fund 
m ay be  used to help defray the cost  of closure and PO st  closure 
ca re when the landfill (Area  3) is closed in approxima tely 4 
years. 
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ITEM  N O . 99-3-- BU DGETS 

Condition: During the course of the audit the Council did not 
adopt budgets for certain Special Revenue Funds. 

Corrective Action: Budgets w ill be adopted in the future for these 
federal drug court grants in order to be  in com pliance with state 
law . The recipients and adm inistrators of these grants, Fairvlew 
Treatment Center, Fairview Outpatient, and Fairview Juvenile will 
provide the budgets and w ill assist in m onito rins: and amending 
the sam e. 

M ATERIA L W EAKN ESS 

ITEM  N O . 99-4 FUN D BA LA N CE 

Condition: During the course of auditing the Parish's fund 
balances, certain differences w ere noted in those balances as 
com pared to prior year audited fund balances. 

Corrective Action: Encum brances w ill be booked as a 
reservation of Fund Balance in the current year, and w ill be  
show n as an expenditure in the follow ing year. The follow ing 
year budget will be adjusted accordingly. 

ITEM  N O . 99-5 FA ILURE TO  BILL FO R REIM BURSEM EN T O F 
SEW ER PLA N T EX PEN DITURES. 

Condition: The Council participates in a agreement w ith the City 
of Franklin to operate a sewerage facility . The Council 
reim burses the City  for thirty percent of the City's ope rating 
costs. In tun, the Council is reim bursed 33%  of its share by St. 
M ary pa rish Sewer District N o. 7. The Council should bill the 
Sew er District each tim e a bill is receiv ed from the city . During 
the audit, it was noted that the Council failed to bill the Sewer 
District for all the District's sha re of the Sewer plant's operating 
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expenditures. The amount of under billing to the District was 
$21,561. 

Corrective Action: The City of Franklin does not submit an 
invoice to us on a monthly basis. The administration has put in 
place a procedure that upon receipt of an invoice from the City 
O f Franklin, an inv oice for reim bursement will be prepared for 
Sewer District No. 7. The City of Franklin invoice w ill be 
processed for paym ent only upo n verification tha t Sewer 7 has 
been invoiced. 

W e subm it this plan of action in accordance with Legislative 
requirem ents and request that you contact the undersign or the 
Chief A dm inistrative O fficer, M r. Henry LaGrange, if you should 
have any questions concerning the co rrective plan of action. 

Very  Truly Yours, 

D. SUE CA RTER 
DIRECTO R O F FINAN CE 
ST. M A RY PA RISH GO VERNM EN T 
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